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FPIC INSURANCE GROUP, INC.

(THE COMPANY)
Florida Corp. (NASDAQ: FPIC)

APS INSURANGE SERVICES, INC,

ANESTHESIOLOGISTS
PROFESSIONAL ASSURANCE CO.

(100% owned by the Company)

Florida Corp.

Delaware Corp.

(20% owned by the Company}

PROFESSIONAL MEDICAL
ADMINISTRATORS, LLC

: Florida Corp.
i (100% owned by the Company)

| FIRST PROFESSIDRALS

INSURANCE COMPAN

Florida Corp.

{100% owned by the Company)

New York LLC
(80% owned by the Company)

e

Y, INC.

ADMIMISTRATORS FOR THE
PROFESSIONS, INC. (AFP}

(100% owned by the Company)

New York Corp.

EMPLOYERS MUTUAL, INC. (EMI) t

"7 Florida Corp,
(100% owned by the Company) l

| AMERICAN PROFESSIONAL
ASSURANCE, LTD. (APAL)

Cayman Islands Corp.
(9.9% owned by the Company) l

THE TENERE GROUP, IXC.

FPIC INTERMEDIARIES, INC

New York Corp. .
{100% owned by AFP} ; '

Missouri Corp.
(100% owned by Tenere)

GROUP DATA CORPORATION r

New York Corp.
(100% owned by AFF}

Florida Corp.
(100% owned by APAL)

APAL (SPL) LTD.

Cayman Islands Corp.
(100% cwned by APAL)

Missouri Corp.
(100% owned by Intermed)

issouri Corp.
(100% owned by Intermed)

PROFESSIONAL STRATEGY
QPTIONS, INC.

Florida Corp.
{100% owned by EMI}

INSURAKCE SERVICES, INC.

Missouri Corp.
{100% owned by Intermed}

FPIC SERVICES, INC.

Florida Corp.

(87.5% owned by EMI)
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01.
THE YEAR IN REVIEW

AT FPIC

Dear Fellow Shareholders, The year 2002 marked a time of transition for
the medical professional liability insurance industry. Across the sector,
we witnessed the profocund impact that converging market and economic
dynamics had on the way insurance companies conduct business. Early in the
year, we began to experience the dramatic shift away from the unfavorable
market conditions that have prevailed since the mid-1990’s, to the more favor-
able market conditions in which we are operating today. Characterized by
significant price improvements, the market provided much-improved margins
and business opportunities that were unavailable a few years ago.
Coincidentally, as business conditions improved for our sector, overall
domestic economic and capital market conditions deteriorated. This sparked a
substantial contraction in our sector as major carriers reassessed their com-
mitment to the professional liability niche in light of mounting financial con-
cerns. As a result, a number of large players partially or completely exited the
sector or retreated from certain markets. The resulting reduction in capacity
was met head-on with an overwhelming demand for medical professional lia-
bility insurance coverage. Unfortunately, this scenario also resulted in signifi-
cant capacity constraints that have spawned a growing medical professional
liability insurance crisis in several prominent states, including Pennsylvania,
West Virginia, New Jersey and our home state of Florida.
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The convergence of these events left many of the regional players with
the enormous burden of providing adequate coverage for a population of
potential insureds, the demands of which exceeded the limits of industry
capacity. While these challenges were being contemplated, regulatory agencies
alsc came under greater scrutiny to ensure that insurance companies were
fully and conservatively capitalized to meet growing demands and new busi-
ness opportunities. By the end of the year, our industry's primary rating agency,
A.M. Best Company (“Best”), had made a number of downgrades throughout the
industry. FPIC's rating change in October 2002, from A- (Excellent) with a neg-
ative outlook to B++ (Very Good) with a stable outlook, was part of this trend.
According to standards established by Best, cur current rating is a secure
rating assigned to companies that have, on balance, very good balance sheet
strength, operating performance and business profile.

A promising year of new opportunities quickly became a trying year that
left many industry players, including cur organization, aggressively seeking
solutions for capacity issues and legislative reforms that would assist in
curbing growing loss costs. We believe that there are solutions, and we are
working in a direction that will allow us to capitalize on new cpportunities tc
improve the healthcare system and to drive value for our shareholders.

2002 Financial and Operational Review

2002 was a year of strong financial and cperational growth. Despite
external pressures, we remained committed to improving profitability and
operational efficiencies, and to maintaining the strength of our organization.
From both a financial and operational perspective, our results were reflective
of that commitment.

2002 Financial Highlights

» Income before cumulative effect of accounting change of $1.58 per diluted
share for the year ended December 31, 2002 |

o Strong top-line growth for the year

> 8.7% return on average shareholders’ equity based upon income before
cumulative effect of accounting change
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+ $538.7 million in cash and investments at year-end

» Increases in assets, reserves, operating cash flow and tangible book value

» Increase in consolidated statutory capital and surplus

» Improved operating earnings from reciprocal management and third-party
administration segments

2002 Operational Review

» High policyholder retention levels

» Approximately 20% growth in policyholders for the year

e Significant pricing improvements

« Significant improvement in the percentage of claims closed with
indemnity payments |

« Executed a reinsurance agreement with Hannover Re Group to bolster
statutory capital and accommodate current growth

» Entered into arrangements to substantially reduce fronted business
in favor of core business

« Sold renewal rights to lawyers’ professional liability insurance
book of business

» Active participation in tort reform initiatives to curb excessive loss costs

» Change in A.M. Best Company rating from A- (Excellent) with a negative
outlook to B++ (Very Good) with a stable outlook

We were extremely pleased to have achieved many of our financial goals
for the year. Most notably, we achieved increased operating earnings, operating
cash flows, tangible book value and statutory surplus. The actions we took to
improve our financial profile and streamline operations have allowed us to
continue to maintain a solid position in our core markets. With once prominent
industry players now having exited from our markets, we believe FPIC has the
opportunity to build on its leadership positions in our primary markets.
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D2.
ACTIONS TAKEN IN 2002

AT FPIC

2002 was a year of resolve. Challenging industry conditions caused us

to make difficult decisions during the year. Most significantly, we took
immediate and proactive steps to protect our capital by declaring a mora-
torium on new business growth. Any decision that limits growth is difficult
for an organization. For FPIC, however, we knew it was necessary to protect
the long-term interests of cur policyholders and shareholders. We acted
expeditiously in an effort to limit our financial exposure and maintain a
solid financial base from which to serve our insureds.

From there, we actively sought alternatives that would help alleviate
our capacity issues. In the third quarter, we entered into a reinsurance
agreement with Hannover Re, which helped bolster our capital position
and accommodate the rapid growth for the short-term. The Company also
contributed $10 million of internally generated funds to our largest insurer,
First Professionals Insurance Company (“First Professionals”), to strengthen
statutory capital. In order to further deploy capital, in support of excess
demand, we positioned the Company to focus more of our existing capital
on our core markets and core lines of business.



As part of this initiative, we made the decision to divest our legal
malpractice business, and to continue to reduce the Company’s fronting
business. We believe these steps taken to shed non-core lines and business-
es will not only benefit the Company's short-term capacity needs, but will
also contribute to an improved financial and operational structure for
the long-term.

The most important part of this streamlining process in 2002 was our
renewed focus on efficient claims management and on profitable pricing
and underwriting. We maintained the conservative pricing and reserving
methodologies that have become a cornerstone of ocur organization and
continued to create efficiencies by employing “best practices” within each
of our business units.

It is no doubt that 2002 proved to be a challenging year for the med-
ical professional liability industry, and we are proud to have addressed
those challenges head-on. In response to changing market dynamics, we
were able to quickly react to issues that could potentially have had
long-term implications for our business. We relied on our organization’s
significant resources and management experience and have laid the
groundwork to capitalize on opportunities that will benefit our customers,
employees and shareholders in 2003.
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03.
WHAT LIES AHEAD

FOR FPIC

With a solid foundation firmly in place, we look ahead in 2003 with
an unwavering commitment to building our businesses, serving the medical
community and enhancing sharehclder value.

We are exploring ways to execute these commitments from every
angle. Externally, we are continuously evaluating capital rescurces and
strategic alternatives that will satisfy our short-term needs, as well as
further our long-term objectives. Taken together, each initiative we pursue
in 2003 will work for one common goal — to seize opportunities that will
allow us to increase shareholder value.

As we consider the different opportunities before us, including
utilizing the capital or private equity markets, or forming strategic partner-
ships, each will be evaluated against potential dilutive effects on the
Company's existing shareholders. Regardless of what path we choose, we
will be sure that it is one that makes the most sense and provides maxi-
mum benefit for our shareholders and our other constituencies.
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Internally, and working with the medical community, we continuously
explore and consider opportunities to address capacity issues and serve
our customer base. Another means of redeploying capital is through our
strategic decision to focus on core states and products, and to continue to
shed non-core lines. In 2003, we will have completed the divestiture of our
legal professional liability business, as well as a number of fronting pro-
grams. This is, and will continue tc be, an important area of focus for us, as
we expect these actions to contribute to the improvement of our capital
structure and to help strengthen our leadership position in core markets.

In addition to our continued focus on our core markets, now and
throughout the upcoming year, we will continue to pursue our other key
priorities. Specifically, we will focus on maintaining the cornerstones of
our business today — continued pricing improvements, improved loss costs,
conservative reserving methodologies and claims handling efficiencies.

We will also seek to create and maintain best practices within each of our
individual business units. For FPIC, this means generating even greater
efficiencies and profitability in our reciprocal management segment, and
streamlining our third-party administration operations.

We take pride in the long-standing relationships we have built with
our policyholders and within the medical community. Because of the
importance of these relationships, we remain at the forefront of the issues
that surround the medical community and those whom we serve.

Currently, Robert E. White, Jr., the newly appointed President of First
Professionals, serves as a leading industry spokesperson for tort reform in
Florida. In this role, Bob has testified before the Governor's Task Force on
Healthcare Professional Liability, Florida’'s House Select Committee on
Medical Liability Insurance and the Florida Senate’s Healthcare Committee.
As tort reform continues to play a pivotal role in our industry, we will
continue to proactively address the issues affecting carriers and their
customers.
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We will aggressively pursue reforms that will ultimately benefit all
parties and curb excessive awards.

We are also committed to maintaining the highest standards in
corporate and board governance. In an era when accounting and financial
scandals have led to a decline in investor confidence throughout the public
markets, our Board and senior management have been proactively evaluat-
ing and implementing progressive Board and corporate governance
practices over the past several years. We will diligently continue these
efforts going forward.

Despite the changing landscape and as we work toward the goals we
have set for 2003, one thing remains constant — our commitment to provid-
ing value for our policyholders, employees and shareholders. During this
time of econcmic uncertainty, we aim to further strengthen the bond of
trust we share with our customers by providing them with the best possible
products and services at actuarially sound rates. Within the walls of FPIC,
we strive to create opportunities for professional growth and fulfillment for
all of our employees.

As the stewards of our sharehclders’ capital, we will employ whatever
actions are necessary and appropriate to increase the value of your invest-
ment. We believe that with our accomplishments in 2002 and the work we
continue to carry out, we have positioned FPIC well to take advantage of the
opportunities that lie ahead. Because of that, we welcome 2003 with enthu-
siasm and view the upcoming year as a positive opportunity to expand our
leadership position within the marketplace, while creating value for our
shareholders.

We appreciate your continued support.

yi&spv A oS

JOHN R. BYERS ROBERT 0. BARATTA, M.0.

President and Chief Executive Officer Chairman
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANGIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements
and the notes to the consolidated financial statements
appearing elsewhere in this report. The consolidated
financial statements include the results of all of FPIC's
wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries.

SAFE HARBOR DISCLOSURE

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 pro-
vides a “safe harbor” for forward-looking statements. Any
written or oral staternents made by or on behalf of FPIC
may include forward-looking statements, which reflect
our current views with respect to future events and finan-
cial performance. These forward-looking statements are
subject to certain uncertainties and other factors that
could cause actual results to differ materially from such
statements. These uncertainties and other factors include,
but are not limited to, (i) uncertainties relating to govern-
ment and regulatory policies (such as subjecting FPIC to
insurance regulation or taxation in additional jurisdic-
tions or amending, revoking or enacting any laws, regula-
tions or treaties affecting our current operations); (ii} the
occurrence of insured or reinsured events with a frequen-
cy or severity exceeding our estimates; (iii) legal develop-
ments, including claims for extra-contractual obligations
or in excess of policy limits in connection with the admin-
istration of insurance claims; (iv) developments in global
financial markets that could affect our investment portfo-
lio and financing plans; (v) the impact of surplus con-
straints on growth; (vi) developments in reinsurance mar-
kets that could affect our reinsurance programs; (vii) the
impact of mergers and acquisitions, including the ability
to successfully integrate acquired businesses and achieve
cost savings, competing demands for our capital and the
risk of undisclosed liabilities; (viii) risk factors associated
with financing and refinancing, including the willingness
of credit institutions to provide financing and the avail-
ability of credit generally; (ix) the competitive environ-
ment in which FPIC operates, including reliance on agents
to place insurance, physicians electing to practice without
insurance coverage, related trends and assaciated pricing
pressures and developments; {x) the actual amount of new
and renewal business; (xi) rates, including rates on excess
policies, being subject to or mandated by regulatory
approval; (xii) the loss of the services of any of our execu-

tive officers; (xiii) the uncertainties of the loss reserving
process; (xiv) the ability to collect reinsurance recover-
ables; (xv) changes in our financial ratings resulting from
one or more of these uncertainties or other factors and the
potential impact on agents’ ability to place insurance
business on behalf of FPIC; {xvi) and other risk factors dis-
cussed elsewhere within this document.

The words “believe,” “anticipate,” “foresee,
“project,” “plan, "

"on " ou

estimate,”
" “expect,” “intend,” “hope,” “should,” “will,”
“will likely result” or “will continue” and variations there-
of or similar expressions identify forward-looking state-
ments. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance
on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as
of their dates. FPIC undertakes no obligation to publicly
update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether
as a result of new information, future events or otherwise,

except as required by law.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our discussion and analysis of financial condition and
results of operations are based upon the consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accor-
dance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (“GAAP"). The preparation of
these financial statements requires us to make estimates
and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues, expenses and related disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities, On an on-going basis, we
evaluate our estimates, including those related to income
taxes, loss and loss adjustment expense ("LAE") reserves,
contingencies and litigation.

We generally base our estimates on historical experi-
ence or other appropriate assumptions that we believe are
reasonable and relevant under the circumstances. The
results of these estimation processes form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates
under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting policies
affect our more significant judgments and estimates used
in preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS. We have
made acquisitions in the past that included significant
amounts of goodwill and other intangible assets. Under




GAAP in effect through December 31, 2001, we amortized .

these assets with charges to income over their estimated
useful lives, and tested them periodically to determine if
they were recoverable from operating earnings on the
basis of an estimate of undiscounted cash flows over their
useful lives.

Effective January 1, 2002, we adopted Financial
Accounting Standard No. (“FAS") 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.” Under FAS 142, goodwill and indefi-
nite-lived intangible assets are no longer amortized
through charges to income, but do continue to be subject
to annual (or under certain circumstances more frequent)
impairment testing based on estimated fair values. Other
intangible assets that meet certain criteria continue to be
amortized over their useful lives and will also be subject
to impairment testing based on estimated fair values.
During the first quarter of 2002, we performed transition-
al impairment testing required under the new standard
and took a charge in the form of a cumulative effect of
accounting change for $29.6 million, net of tax effects, as
of the beginning of the year.

LOSS AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES. We esti-
mate our liability for losses and LAE (“loss and LAE
reserves”) using actuarial techniques and projections of
the amounts of ultimate losses and LAE for each period.
We also integrate other quantitative and qualitative
analyses of conditions into our actuarial analysis that we
expect to affect the future development of claims and
related expenses. Our loss and LAE reserves comprise the
largest liability and most significant estimate or compila-
tion of estimates in our financial statements.
Furthermore, our loss and LAE reserves are subject to sig-
nificant inherent uncertainties and so there can be no
assurance as to whether the actual results will be higher
or lower than these estimates. Any adjustments or changes
for such differences will almost certainly be material,
especially to our operating results for a period. As our loss
and LAE reserves are re-estimated, changes to those esti-
mates and our carried reserves, if any, are recognized as a
charge or credit to income, as the case may be, in the
financial statements for the most recent period presented.

With regard to our core medical professional liability
("MPL"} business, which is written primarily on the
claims-made policy form, the estimated liability for loss-
es and LAE is basically comprised of our reserves on indi-

vidual reported losses {“case reserves”), plus provisions

for case reserve development and incurred but not report-
ed ("IBNR") reserves to arrive at our best estimate of what
our losses and LAE will be once all cases are settled. These
provisions are negative, in aggregate, or a net reduction
from the sum total of our individual case reserve esti-
mates for most years. This is because our case loss
reserves have historically developed downward, in aggre-
gate, from the time they become fully established to the
time they are settled and we expect this trend to continue.
Our core claims-made policies do not have IBNR losses, as
do traditional occurrence based property and casualty
insurance policies. We do estimate and set aside IBNR for
LAE, tail coverage and covered extended reporting
endorsements issued in the event of death, disability or
retirement of claims-made insureds. We also have IBNR
loss reserves on some of the direct MPL business we wrote
in recent years and on our assumed reinsurance where the
coverage is occurrence based.

For the purposes of setting aside reserves on risks
insured during the most recent year, including interim
periods, for which very little experience is present, fore-
casted loss ratios were applied to earned premiums dur-
ing the interim periods. The forecasted loss ratios were
judgmentally determined taking into account the results
of the most recent actuarial studies performed, current
pricing and underwriting, expected loss and LAE trends
and other pertinent considerations. In addition, we moni-
tored and analyzed key loss and LAE indicators and
trends throughout the year. These included paid losses,
newly reported claims and incidents, closed claim activi-
ty and other metrics. These indicators were taken into
account in assessing the reasonableness of our loss
reserve estimates throughout the year and the forecasted
loss and LAE ratios applied during each interim period.

REINSURANCE. Reinsurance recoverables are the bal-
ances due for paid and unpaid losses and LAE that will be
recovered from reinsurers, based on contracts in force. We
estimate the amounts recoverable from reinsurers in a
manner consistent with our estimates for the underlying
claim liabilities that we reinsured. Reinsurance does not
relieve us from our primary obligations to policyholders.
Failure of reinsurers to honor their obligations could
result in losses to us. We evaluate the financial condition
of our reinsurers and monitor concentrations of credit
risk with respect to the individual reinsurers that partici-
pate in our ceded programs to minimize our exposure to
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significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, We hold
collateral in the form of letters of credit or trust accounts
for amounts recoverable from reinsurers that are not des-
ignated as authorized reinsurers by the domiciliary
Departments of Insurance.

INCOME TAXES. We account for income taxes in accor-
dance with FAS 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes.”
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
future tax consequences attributable to temporary differ-
ences between the financial statement carrying amounts
of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases and operating loss and tax credit carry forwards.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in
the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred
tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recog-
nized in income in the period that includes the enactment
date. A valuation allowance against deferred tax assets is
recorded if it is more likely than not that all or some por-
tion of the benefits related to the deferred tax assets will
not be realized. Valuation allowances are based on esti-
mates of taxable income and the period over which
deferred tax assets will be recoverable. In the event that
actual results differ from these estimates or these esti-
mates are adjusted in future periods, we may need to
establish a valuation allowance, which would impact our
financial position and results of operations. No such val-
uation allowance has been established to date, as we
believe it is more likely than not that our deferred tax
assets will be fully realized.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES. Liabilities
for loss contingencies arising from claims, assessments,
litigation, fines and penalties and other sources are
recorded when it is probable that a liability has been
incurred and the amount of the assessment and/or reme-
diation can be reasonably estimated.

REVENUE RECOGNITION. Premium income, which is
our main source of revenue, is generally recognized pro-
rata over the respective period of each policy. Premium
receivables are recorded net of an estimated allowance for
uncollectible amounts. Some of our assumed reinsurance
agreements with Physicians’ Reciprocal Insurers (“PRI")
contain adjustable premiums based upon loss experience
and our financial statements include estimated adjust-
ments accrued through the end of the reporting period

corresponding with our loss experience under these
agreements for the period.

Management fees of the reciprocal management seg-
ment, determined as a percentage of PRI's premiums, are
recognized as billed and earned under the contract, which
generally corresponds with the reported premiums writ-
ten of PRI, net of an estimate for premium refunds, for the
calendar year. Such management fees are estimated, billed
and earned for quarterly reporting purposes based upon
semi-annual estimates of the reported premiums written
of PRI rather than actual written premiums for a quarter,
which may vary significantly from quarter to quarter. This
convention is used so that management fees are recognized
more ratably over the period in relation to the services pro-
vided by the reciprocal management segment to PRI.

GENERAL

FPIC Insurance Group, Inc. ("FPIC") was formed in 1996
through a reorganization (the “Reorganization”) in which
it became the parent company of Florida Physicians
Insurance Company, Inc. (“Florida Physicians”} and
MecCreary Corporation (“McCreary”), a third-party admin-
istrator. Under the Reorganization, Florida Physicians’
shareholders became the shareholders of FPIC and
received five shares of FPIC common stock for each share
of Florida Physicians common stock. In May 2001, we
changed the name of Florida Physicians to First
Professionals Insurance Company, Inc. (“First
Professionals”). In January 2002, McCreary was merged
into its subsidiary, Employers Mutual, Inc. (“EMI"), with
EMI continuing as the surviving entity.

We have three main operating segments: insurance,
reciprocal management and third-party administration
(“TPA"). FPIC's primary sources of revenue are manage-
ment fees and dividends from its subsidiaries. The main
sources of revenue for these amounts are premiums
earned and investment income (insurance segment) and
claims administration and management fees and commis-
sion income (reciprocal management and TPA segments).

Our insurance segment specializes in professional lia-
bility insurance products and services for physicians,
dentists, other healthcare providers and attorneys. On
October 3, 2002, Interlex Insurance Company (“Interlex”)
entered into an agreement with an unrelated insurance
organization to sell the renewal rights to all of its legal




professional liability policies. The reciprocal management
segment contains our subsidiary Administrators For The
Professions ("AFP"), which serves as the exclusive manag-
er and attorney-in-fact for PRI, an insurance reciprocal in
New York. We do not own PRI and so its financial state-
ments are not consolidated or included in ours. Instead,
PRI is similar to a mutual insurer and the risks and

rewards of ownership basically vest with the policyhold- -

ers of PRI. The reciprocal management segment also pro-
vides brokerage, administration and intermediary servic-
es for insurance and reinsurance programs to PRI and
FPIC. Our TPA segment markets and administers self-
insured plans for both large and small employers, includ-
ing group accident and health, workers’ compensation
and general liability and property insurance. Our finan-
cial position and results of operations are subject to fluc-
tuations due to a variety of factors and our historical
results of operations are not necessarily indicative of
future earnings.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
OVERVIEW: TWELVE MOWTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
COMPARED TO TWELVE MONTHS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2001

For the year ended December 31, 2002, we reported a net
loss of ($14.7) million, or ($1.56) per diluted share, com-
pared to net income of $2.9 million, or $0.31 per diluted
share, for the year ended December 31, 2001. Our net loss
for 2002 includes a $29.6 million after-tax charge for the
cumulative effect of accounting change related to the
adoption of FAS 142 on goodwill and other intangible
assets {$48.4 million pre-tax). The transitional impairment
charges, resulting from the adoption of FAS 142, were
associated entirely with our non-insurance segments. Our
income before the cumulative effect of accounting change
was $14.9 million, or $1.58 per diluted share, for the year
ended December 31, 2002.

Our total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2002
increased 12% to $220.9 million from $197.6 million for
the year ended December 31, 2001. The increase in rev-
enues is primarily the result of price improvements on our
core MPL business and growth in the number of policy-
holders. Net premiums earned on our MPL business
increased 23% to $148.6 million for the year ended

December 31, 2002 from $120.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2001. Revenues earned by our reciprocal
management segment increased $2.4 million primarily as
the result of an increase in claims administration and
management fees earned. In addition, brokerage commis-
sions earned by FPIC
(“Intermediaries”) also increased when compared with the
prior year.

Our total expenses for the year ended December 31,
2002 increased less than 1% to $197.2 million from $196.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Net losses
and LAE incurred for the year ended December 31, 2002
increased $11.3 million or 9% when compared with the
year ended December 31, 2001. Net losses and LAE
incurred on our MPL business increased 17% to $137.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $117.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Net losses
and LAE incurred in 2002 were also reduced by losses and
LAE incurred of $39.0 million, which was ceded under the
Hannover Re reinsurance agreement (see further discus-
sion below regarding this agreement). The increase in net
losses and LAE incurred for the year ended December 31,
2002, reflects the growth in our business, taking into con-
sideration expected loss trends. The increases in total
expenses were offset primarily by ceding commissions
related to the Hannover Re finite reinsurance agreement
and our adoption of FAS 142. The adoption of FAS 142
eliminated amortization expense of approximately
$3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2002.

One of the most significant financial developments for
us in 2002 was our new finite reinsurance agreement with
Hannover Re. It is supplemental to our other reinsurance
programs and represents a very large additional reinsur-
ance cession for us. The following table summarizes the
effects of the Hannover Re agreement on our condensed
consolidated income statement and balance sheet
accounts. These pro-forma condensed consolidated finan-
cial statements are non-GAAP presentations and are not
intended to serve as a substitute for our audited consoli-
dated financial statements presented elsewhere. Instead,
this presentation is intended to help discern the impact of
the Hannover Re agreement in the context of the overall
trends in our reported operating results and financial
position for 2002 discussed elsewhere.

Intermediaries, Inc. .



FPIC INSURANCE GROUP, INC.
COGMDENSED PRO-FORMA (“NON-GAAP") CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION ARD (LOSS) INCOME

As of and for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 (in thousands, except common share data)

PRO-FORMA 2002
EFFECTS OF (EXCLUDIKG PRO-FORMA
HANNOVER RE  HANNOVER RE 2002 VS 2001

2002 AGREEMENT  AGREEMENT) % CHANGE 2001
ASSETS
Total cash and investments $ 538,720 (3,513) 542,233 23% 441,966
Due from reinsurers on unpaid losses
and advance premiums 168,159 38,794 129,365 61% 80,410
Ceded unearned premiums 78,889 37,352 41,537 2% 40,794
Deferred policy acquisition costs : 4,452 (5,229) 9,681 8% 9,001
Deferred income taxes 34,653 (4,507) 39,160 96% 19,944
Other 201,558 — 201,558 13% 178,707
Total assets ‘ $1,026,431 62,897 963,534 25% 770,822
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Losses and loss adjustment expenses $ 440,166 — 440,166 38% 318,483
Unearned premiums 173,421 — 173,421 18% 146,761
Reinsurance payable i 96,470 60,196 36,274 36% 26,689
Deferred ceding commission 4,669 4,669 — 0% —
Federal income tax payable 120 (3,527) 3,647 100% —
Other 145,672 — 145,672 40% 104,315
Total liabilities 860,518 61,338 799,180 34% 596,248
Total shareholders’ equity 165,913 1,559 164,354 -6% 174,574
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $1,026,431 » 62,897 963,534 25% 770,822
NET PREMIUMS WRITTEN $ 140,248 (85,531) 225,779 54% 147,084
Revenues
Net premiums earned $ 151,684 (48,179) 199,863 52% 131,058
Net investment income 19,902 (1,075) 20,977 -10% 23,377
Other 49,279 — 49,279 14% 43,147
Total revenues 220,865 (49,254) 270,119 37% 197,582
EXPENSES
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 139,571 (39,025) 178,596 39% 128,346
Other underwriting expenses 19,155 (12,767) 31,922 23% 25,883
Other 38,429 — 38,429 -9% 42,267
Total expenses 197,155 (51,792) 248,947 27% 196,496
Income before income taxes and cumulative
effect of accounting change 23,710 2,538 21,172 1850% 1,086
Less: Income tax expense (benefit) 8,834 979 7,855 -526% (1,844)
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change 14,876 1,659 13,317 355% 2,930
Less: Cumulative effect of accounting change (net of tax) 29,578 — 29,578 100% —
Net (loss) income $  {14,702) 1,559 (16,261) -655% 2,930
Basic (loss} earnings per common share 3 (1.57) 0.17 (1.73) -658% 0.31
Diluted (loss) earnings per common share $ (1.56) 0.17 (1.72) -655% 0.31
Loss ratio 92% 81% 89% -9% 98%
Underwriting expense ratio 13% 26% 16% -20% 20%

GAAP underwriting (combined) ratio 105% 107% 105% -11% 118%




OVERVIEW: TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 20MY
COMPARED 70 TWELVE MONTHS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2000

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2001, totaled
$2.9 million, or $0.31 per diluted share, compared with net
income of $0.6 million, or $0.06 per diluted share, for the
vear ended December 31, 2000. The 2001 results include
the after-tax effects of $5.4 million for an adjustment
made to increase reserves on prior years’ business and
$0.4 million in restructuring charges associated with our
TPA operations. Improved pricing and growth in policy-
holders during 2001 generated significant top-line
growth.

Total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2001
increased 9%, to $197.6 million, from $182.1 million for the
year ended December 31, 2000. Annual revenue growth
was driven primarily by growth in earned premiums,
which contributed $10.6 million to such growth.
Significant improvements in pricing and the addition of
MPL policyholders, primarily in Florida and Missouri,
were the primary source of premium growth. Commission
income and claims administration and management fees
earned by our non-insurance subsidiaries in New York and
Florida also grew, contributing $7.2 million to the growth
in total revenues. The growth in total revenues during
2001 was offset by a $1.4 million decline in investment
income as a result of lower market yields.

Total expenses for the year ended December 31, 2001
increased 6%, to $196.5 million, from $185.1 million for the
year ended December 31, 2000. Net losses and LAE
incurred for the year ended December 31, 2001 increased
$5.6 million or 5%, over the prior year. Excluding the prior

year portions of pre-tax reserve charges in 2001 and 2000
of $8.6 million and $6.5 million, respectively, net losses
and LAE incurred increased $3.5 million, or 3% during the
year 2001. The increase reflects growth and the continua-
tion of our policy to maintain our reserves at a conserva-
tive level. Other underwriting expenses also contributed
to the increase in total expenses, primarily as a result of
enhancements made to our financial and reporting systems
and an increase in operating expenses related to growth in
business. Offsetting the increases in expenses was a reduc-
tion in the allowance for bad debts of $1.0 million.

INSURANCE SEGMENT

Our insurance segment is made up of our four insurance
subsidiaries, First Professionals, Anesthesiologists
Professional Assurance Company ("APAC") and The Tenere
Group, Inc. (“Tenere’) companies, Intermed Insurance
Company (“Intermed”) and Interlex Insurance Company
(“Interlex”). FPIC operations are also included in the
insurance segment due to its size and prominence and the
substantial attention the holding company devotes to the
segment.

Effective October 3, 2002, we sold the renewal rights on
Interlex's legal professional liability insurance business
to a subsidiary of Professionals Direct, Inc., a non-affili-
ate, for $0.4 million. The sale of Interlex’s renewal rights
allows us to re-dedicate Interlex’s capital to our core MPL
business.

Financial and selected other data of our insurance seg-
ment for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000 is summarized in the table that follows.

]%
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INSURANGE SEGMENT PERCENTAGE PERCENTAGE
(Dollar amounts are in thousands) 2002 CHANGE 2001 CHANGE 20060
Direct and assumed premiums written $ 344,727 40% 245,403 24% 197,280
Net premiums written $140,248 -5% 147,084 -9% 161,931
Net premiums earned $151,684 16% 131,058 9% 120,454
Net investment income 19,718 -14% 22,874 -6% 24,325
Commission income 8 -87% 62 -61% 157
Net realized investment gains 4,688 228% 1,429 420% 275
Finance charge and other income 1,251 71% 731 -52% 1,520
Intersegment revenue 2,351 14% 2,059 84% 1,121

Total revenues 179,700 14% 158,213 7% 147,852
Net losses and LAE incurred 139,571 9% 128,346 5% 122,766
Other underwriting expense 19,155 -26% 25,883 25% 20,640
Interest expense 4,827 6% 4,566 6% 4,291
Other expenses 456 -54% 998 -64% 2,789
Intersegment expense 3,414 -7% 3,652 -44% 6,571

Total expenses 167,423 2% 163,445 4% 157,057
Income (loss) from operations before taxes

and cumulative effect of accounting change 12,277 335% (5,232) 43% (9,205)

Less: Income tax expense (benefit) 4,316 198% (4,385) 30% {6,280)
Income before cumulative effect of

accounting change 7,961 1040% (847) 71% (2,925)

Less: Cumulative effect of accounting change — 0% — 0% —

Net income {loss} $ 7,961 1040% (847) 71% (2,925)

SELECTED INSURANCE SEGMENT INFORMATION
Net paid losses and LAE on professional

liability claims $ 92,497 7% 86,535 -3% 88,903
Average net paid loss per professional liability

claim closed with indemnity payment 3 184 5% 176 1% 174
Total professional liability claims and incidents

reported during the period 3,191 42% 2,251 14% 1,976
Total professional liability claims closed with

indemnity payment 293 -5% 310 -6% 330
Total professional liability claims and incidents

closed without indemnity payment 2,104 46% 1,442 13% 1,280
Professional liability policyholders (excludes

policyholders under fronting arrangements) 16,915 21% 14,010 29% 10,902
Professional liability policyholders under

fronting arrangements 4,544 1% 4,482 338% 1,024

Direct and assumed premiums written increased 40% to
$344.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from
$245.4 million for the year ended December 30, 2001. The
increase primarily results from rate increases realized
and growth in the number of policyholders in our core

'MPL business. First Professionals implemented rate

increases in January and December 2001, and again in
December 2002; APAC implemented rate increases in July

2001 and 2002; and Intermed implemented rate increases
in November 2001 and July 2002. We also experienced
growth in direct premiums written under fronting
arrangements for workers’ compensation business of
$19.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 when
compared to the year ended December 31, 2001. The
growth in direct premiums written was partially offset by
a decline of $7.8 million in group accident and health




(“A&H") programs for the year ended December 31, 2002,
which were discontinued in November of 2001.

Direct and assumed premiums written increased 24% to
$245 .4 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 from
$197.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2000.
Excluding the effects of the non-recurring portion of
assumed premiums under the 100% quota share reinsur-
ance agreement written in the first quarter of 2000
between our insurance subsidiaries and PRI and the
effects of the decline in premiums written under AGH pro-
grams of $16.7 million, direct and assumed premiums
written increased approximately $99 million or 71%. The
increase in direct and assumed premiums written is due
to the effect of rate increases and growth in new business
in our core MPL lines, and growth in premiums written
under fronting arrangements. The growth in direct premi-
ums written was partially offset by declines in other MPL
assumed premiums written. Under the 100% quota share
reinsurance agreement with PRI, we assumed the death,
disability and retirement {“DD&R"} risks under PRI's
claims-made insurance policies and recognized assumed
premiums written, net of a deferred credit, of approxi-
mately $34 million.

Net premiums written decreased 5% to $140.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $147.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2001. The decline in net
premiums written is related to the finite quota share rein-
surance agreement effective July 1, 2002 between our
largest subsidiary, First Professionals, and Hannover Re.
Under the terms of the Hannover Re agreement, we ceded
approximately $50.8 million of our unearned premiums,
and $34.7 million of our direct written premiums, net of
other reinsurance. The agreement, which calls for First
Professionals to cede quota share portions of its 2002 and
2003 written premiums, contains adjustable features,
including a loss corridor, sliding scale ceding commis-
sions and a cap on the amount of losses that may be ceded
to the reinsurer. The effect of these features is to limit the
reinsurers’ aggregate exposure to loss and reduce the ulti-
mate costs of this reinsurance to First Professionals as the
ceding company. These features also have the effect of
reducing the amount of protection relative to the quota
share amount of premiums ceded by First Professionals.
While First Professionals does not receive pro-rata protec-
tion relative to the amount of premiums ceded, the
amount of reinsurance protection is significant, as deter-
mined in accordance with guidance under both GAAP and

statutory accounting practices. In addition to ceding a
significant portion of our risks to Hannover Re, the agree-
ment also allows us to reduce our financial leverage and
to realize immediate reimbursement for our up-front
acquisition costs, which, in turn, lessens the strain on
our capital.

Net premiums earned increased 16% to $151.7 million
for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $131.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2001. The increase in net
premiums earned is due to rate increases that we imple-
mented and growth in the number of policyholders. Net
premiums earned on our MPL business increased 23% to
$148.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from
$120.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Net premiums earned increased 9% to $131.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2001 from $120.5 million for
the year ended December 31, 2000. The increase in net pre-
miums earned is less than the increase in direct and
assumed premiums written for the same period primarily
due to the inherent lag between written and earned premi-
ums. In addition, as noted above, direct premiums written
include premiums written under fronting agreements for
which a relatively small portion of business is retained
and therefore only a small portion of premium is ultimate-
ly earned. The increase in net premiums earned is due to
growth in the number of policyholders and the effects of
rate increases instituted by our insurance subsidiaries
during 2001. Partially offsetting this increase was a
decline in AGH premiums earned of 70%, to $7.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2001, from $24.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2000.

Net investment income declined 14% to $19.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2002 from $22.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2001. The decline in net
investment income is primarily due to lower prevailing
interest rates and reduced yields on fixed income invest-
ments, beginning in the second half of 2001. We also con-
tinued to hold significant funds in short-term invested
cash in anticipation of possible improvements in fixed
income rates rather than committing those funds to
longer-term investments at historically low yields. On a
consolidated basis, our total cash and investments grew
to $538.7 million in 2002, up $96.7 million or 22% from
$442.0 million in 2001. Once again, the effects of histori-
cally low yields have been offset at least to some extent by
growth in cash and invested assets.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS cosrinven)

Net investment income decreased 6% to $22.9 million
for the year ended December 31, 2001 from $24.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2000. The decrease in net
investment income is primarily due to lower prevailing
interest rates in fixed income securities. The effects of
lower yields were offset to some degree by growth in cash
and invested assets resulting from growth in insurance
premiums. On a consolidated basis, our total cash and
investments grew to $ 442.0 million in 2001, up $18.0 mil-
lion or 4%, from $424.0 million in 2000.

Net realized investment gains increased 228% to
$4.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from
$1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Qur
investment strategy remains focused on high quality,
fixed income securities held for the long-term; however,
certain securities may be liquidated from time to time
in order to reposition the portfolio or to take advantage
of current market and economic conditions. The increase
in net realized investment gains in 2002 is a reflection of
this strategy.

Net realized investment gains increased 420% to $1.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2001 from $0.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2000. We engaged
new professional investment managers during 2001 as
part of our overall investment strategy. While our invest-
ment strategy remains focused on high quality, fixed
income securities, some changes have been made in our
asset allocations among these types of securities to take
advantage of changing market conditions. The increase in
net realized investment gains coincides with the liquida-
tion of investments associated with repositioning our
investment portfolio.

Finance charges and other income increased 71% to $1.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $0.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The increase
in finance charges and other income is primarily the
result of the sale of the renewal rights on Interlex’s legal
professional liability business, whereby we realized
income in the amount of $0.4 million.

Finance charges and other income decreased 52% to
$0.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 from
$1.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2000. The
decline in finance charges and other income is due to our
decision to include a provision for finance charges within
our Florida MPL policy premiums, rather than assessing
finance charges separately.

Net losses and LAE incurred increased 9% to $139.6 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $128.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Net losses
and LAE incurred in 2002 were reduced by an increase in
ceded losses and LAE incurred under the Hannover Re
reinsurance agreement of $39.0 million. The increase in
net losses and LAE incurred for the year ended December
31, 2002 reflects growth in business, taking into consider-
ation expected loss trends. Our loss ratios for the years
ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 were 92% and 98%,
respectively. A loss ratio is defined as the ratio of loss and
LAE incurred to net premiums earned. The 6% decrease in
the reported loss ratio for the year ended December 31,
2002 is primarily due to a significant prior year reserve
charge taken in 2001, which was not necessary in 2002
(-5%), loss expense reduction and productivity (-2%), our
exit from our former group A&H business (-1%) and other
(-1%); which were partially offset by the effects of the new
Hannover Re agreement (3%).

Net losses and LAE incurred increased 5% to $128.3 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2001 from $122.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2000. The loss
ratios for such periods were 98% and 102%, respectively.
During the fourth quarter of 2001, we made a decision to
adjust reserves upward by $8.8 million, pre-tax. Our deci-
sion to increase reserves reflects our policy to maintain
our reserves at a conservative level. Excluding the prior
year portions of pre-tax reserve charges in 2001 and 2000
of $8.6 million and $6.5 million, respectively, net losses
and LAE incurred increased $3.5 million, or 3% during the
year 2001. The increase in losses and LAE incurred was
partially offset by a decline in our group A&H business
corresponding with the withdrawal from our group AGH
programs in 2001. The remaining increase is consistent
with the growth in business during 2001 and continues to
reflect our stated objective of maintaining our reserves at
conservative levels, taking into consideration expected
loss trends and all other pertinent considerations.

The loss and LAE reserves represent our best estimate
of the ultimate cost of all losses incurred but unpaid and
considers prior loss experience, loss trends, our loss
retention levels and the expected frequency and severity
of claims. The process of establishing reserves for proper-
ty and casualty claims is a complex and uncertain
process, requiring the use of informed estimates and judg-
ments. Our estimates and judgments may be revised as




additional experience and other data become available
and are reviewed, as new or improved methodologies are
developed or as the current legal environment affecting
the settlement of our liability claims changes. Any such
changes could result in future revisions in the estimates
of losses or reinsurance recoverables, and would be
reflected in our results of operations for the most recent
period being reported coinciding with when the change
occurs. We believe our reserves for losses and LAE are
adequate; however, given the inherent uncertainty in
reserve estimates, there can be no assurance that the ulti-
mate amount of actual losses will not exceed the related
amounts currently estimated. Furthermore, any such dif-
ference, either positive or negative, could have a material
effect on our results of operations and financial position.

Other underwriting expenses decreased 26% to $19.2
million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $25.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The decline
in other underwriting expenses is attributable to ceding
commissions recognized under the terms of the finite
quota share reinsurance agreement with Hannover Re in
the amount of $13.2 million. In addition, First
Professionals, our largest insurance subsidiary, per-
formed a study of its 2001 expenses incurred in the
administration of claims and based on the results of this
study, decreased the amount of expenses allocated to LAE
in 2002.

Other underwriting expenses increased 25% to $25.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2001 from $20.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2000. The increase
in other underwriting expenses is primarily attributable
to additional operating expenses associated with the
growth in business and expenses incurred to improve our
information systems. In addition, two of our insurance
subsidiaries, First Professionals and APAC, increased their
accruals for guarantee fund assessments by approximately
$0.9 million, combined. Offsetting these increases was a
reduction in the allowance for bad debts of $1.0 million.

Other expenses decreased 54% to $0.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2002 from $1.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2001. The decline in other
expenses is due to our adoption of FAS 142. In accordance
with FAS 142, we ceased the amortization of goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets during the first quarter
of 2002.

Other expenses declined 64% to $1.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2001 from $2.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2000. Other expenses for the year
2000 included a non-recurring pre-tax severance charge of
$1.8 million.

Income tax expense increased to $4.3 million for the
year ended December 31, 2002 from an income tax benefit
of $4.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2001.
Income tax expense in 2002 increased primarily as a
result of an increase in pre-tax income when compared
with 2001. We recognized an income tax benefit in the
prior year because our permanent differences, primarily
tax-exempt interest, were greater than our pre-tax income.
The effect of these permanent differences was proportion-
ately less when compared with pre-tax income in 2002,
resulting in tax expense at an effective rate of 37%. In
2001, we also engaged outside investment managers and
began re-positioning investments including the re-posi-
tioning of investments in tax-exempt municipal securities
to investments in taxable securities.

RECIPROCAL MANAGEMENT

Our reciprocal management segment is made up of AFP,
our New York subsidiary, and its two wholly-owned sub-
sidiaries, Intermediaries and Group Data Corporation
("Group Data”). AFP acts as administrator and attorney-in-
fact for PRI, the second largest medical professional lia-
bility insurer for physicians in the state of New York.
Intermediaries acts as a reinsurance broker and interme-
diary in the placement of reinsurance. Group Data acts as
a broker in the placement of annuities for structured set-
tlements. The segment also includes the business of
Professional Medical Administrators, LLC (“PMA"), a 70%
owned subsidiary. Effective January 1, 2003, FPIC owns
80% of PMA. PMA provides brokerage and administration
services for professional liability insurance programs.
Financial and selected other data for the reciprocal man-
agement segment for the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000 is summarized in the table that follows.
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RECIPROCAL MANAGEMENT SEGMENT PERCENTAGE PERCENTAGE
{Doilar amounts are in thousands) 2002 CHANGE 2001 CHANGE 2000
Claims administration and management fees $ 24,341 6% 22,959 35% 17,044
Net investment income 141 -59% 344 35% 255
Commission income 3,732 50% 2,483 106% 1,203
Other income 83 -79% 399 -76% 1,679
Intersegment revenue 3,381 9% 3,111 -39% 5124
Total revenues 31,678 8% 29,296 16% 25,305
Claims administration and management expenses 18,940 3% 18,420 23% 15,028
Interest expense 213 100% — 100% —
Other expenses 35 -98% 2,172 0% 2,172
Intersegment expense 1,577 4% 1,618 147% 614
Total expenses 20,765 -6% 22,110 24% 17,814
Income from operations before taxes and cumulative
effect of accounting change 10,813 52% 7,186 -4% 7,491
Less: Income tax expense 4,309 52% 2,838 -9% 3,131
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change 6,604 52% 4,348 0% 4,360
Less: Cumulative effect of accounting change 24,363 100% — 0% —
Net (loss) income $ (17,759) -508% 4,348 0% 4,360
SELECTED RECIPROCAL MANAGEMENT SEGMENT
INFORMATION
Reciprocal premiums written under management $186,924 4% 180,539 34% 134,321
Reciprocal statutory assets under management $821,396 -2% 834,138 3% 811,770
Professional liability policyholders under management 10,547 6% 9,950 21% 8,210

Claims administration and management fees increased
6% to $24.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2002,
from $23.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2001.
The claims administration and management fees earned
by AFP are comprised entirely of management fees from
PRI and the increase is due to the growth in premiums
written by PRL

In accordance with the management agreement
between AFP and PRI, AFP receives a management fee
equal to 13% of PRI's direct premiums written, with an
adjustment for expected return premiums. As such, our
revenues and results of operations are financially sensi-
tive to the revenues and financial condition of PRI. PRI,
as an MPL insurer, is subject to many of the same types of
risks as those of our insurance subsidiaries and MPL com-
panies generally. Growth at PRI is subject to surplus con-
straints; however, as a reciprocal, PRI is able to operate at
higher leverage ratios than non-reciprocals such as our
insurance subsidiaries. Further, as allowed under New
York insurance laws, PRI has requested and received per-
mission from the New York State Insurance Department to

follow the permitted practice of discounting its loss and
LAE reserves. The New York State Insurance Department
mandates PRI's rates, including rates charged for policies
in excess of $1.3 million, which have been reinsured to
First Professionals.

Claims administration and management fees increased
35% to $23.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2001,
from $17.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2000.
The increase in claims administration and management
fees is due to an increase in the premiums written by PRI

Commission income increased 50% to $3.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2002 from $2.5 million for
the year ended December 31, 2001. The increase in com-
mission income is due to an increase in brokerage com-
missions earned by Intermediaries for the placement of
reinsurance, which is the result of an increase in written
premiums placed and the rates for reinsurance. In addi-
tion, commission income of approximately $0.5 million
was recognized as a result of a brokerage fee earned from
Hannover Re related to the placement of our finite rein-
surance agreement.




Commission income increased 106% to $2.5 million for
the year ended December 31, 2001 from $1.2 million for
the year ended December 31, 2000. The increase in com-
mission income corresponds with the increase in the
amount of reinsurance brokered by Intermediaries in 2001.

Other income decreased 79% to $0.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002 from $0.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2001. Effective January 1, 2002, AFP
and PRI amended the management agreement, including
the elimination of the sharing by AFP of 10% of PRI's
statutory net income or loss, which accounts for the
decline in other income. The amendment was approved by
the New York State Insurance Department.

Other income decreased 76% to $0.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2001 from $1.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2000. The decrease in other income is
the result of lower statutory net income at PRI compared
to the year 2000. The income received by AFP related to
PRI's statutory net income for the years ended December
31, 2001 and 2000 was $0.3 million and $1.6 million,
respectively. In accordance with the management agree-
ment between AFP and PRI, through 2001, AFP received or
paid an amount equal to 10% of PRI's statutory net income
or loss.

Claims administration and management expenses
increased 3% to $18.9 million for the year ended December
31, 2002 from $18.4 million for the year ended December
31, 2001. The increase in claims administration and man-
agement expenses for the year ended December 31, 2002 is
due to an increase in operating expenses incurred to man-
age the growth in business at PRI, offset partially by a
decline in risk management department expenses when
compared to the year ended December 31, 2001. As noted
above, the management agreement between AFP and PRI
was amended in 2002. As part of the amended agreement,
PRI is to reimburse AFP for 100% of risk management
department expenses as compared with 50% under the
former agreement.

Claims administration and management expenses
increased 23% to $18.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2001 from $15.0 million for the year ended

December 31, 2000. The increase in claims administration
and management expense is primarily attributable to an
increase in commission expense incurred as a result of
growth in brokerage and administration business at AFP
and PMA. Under terms of the management agreement
between AFP and PRI, AFP is responsible for brokerage
costs incurred by PRI. In addition, AFP incurred addition-
al operating expenses related to the growth in direct busi-
ness at PRI

Interest expense increased to $0.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002. The increase in interest expense
is the result of the 2002 amendment to the management
agreement between AFP and PRI In accordance with the
amended agreement, AFP has agreed to pay 6% annual
interest on the 10% profit share amounts already earned
and collected under the original agreement for 1999, 2000
and 2001, while those years remain open for possible
future re-determination and adjustment, if any.

Other expenses decreased 98% to $0.04 million for the
year ended December 31, 2002 from $2.2 million for the
year ended December 31, 2001. The decline in other
expenses is due to the effects of the adoption of FAS 142,
In accordance with FAS 142, we ceased the amortization of
goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets during the
first quarter of 2002. The reciprocal management segment
also recorded a transitional impairment charge of $24.4
million, after-tax, which is accounted for as the cumula-
tive effect of accounting change. The non-cash transition-
al impairment charge primarily reflects certain intangi-
bles and synergies, which, in our opinion, are opportunis-
tic in nature and carry a significant degree of uncertainty;
therefore, we treated these intangibles conservatively in
the valuation required by FAS 142.

THIRD-PARTY ADMINISTRATION

Our TPA segment is made up of our subsidiary EMI.
Financial and selected other data for our TPA segment
for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
is summarized in the table that follows.
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THIRD-PARTY ADMINISTRATION SEGMENT PERCENTAGE PERCENTAGE
(Dollar amounts are in thousands) 2002 CHANGE 2001 CHAMGE 2000
Claims administration and management fees $ 12,693 1% 12,545 -3% 12,982
Net investment income ' 43 -73% 159 -33% 239
Commission income 2,475 -1% 2,503 19% 2,109
Net realized investment losses — 100% — 100% (366)
Other income 8 -78% 36 -83% 213
Intersegment revenue 83 -89% 741 -52% 1,646
Total revenues 15,302 -4% 15,984 -4% 16,723
Claims administration and management expenses 13,958 -6% 14,784 -5% 15,541
Other expenses — -100% 1,327 -28% 1,834
Intersegment expense 824 11% 741 22% 606
Total expenses 14,782 -12% 16,852 -6% 17,981
Income (loss) from operations before taxes and cumulative
effect of accounting change 520 160% (868) 31% (1,258)
Less: Income tax expense (benefit) 209 170% (297) 32% 437)
Income (loss) before curnulative effect of accounting change 311 154% (5671) 30% (821)
Less: Cumulative effect of accounting change 5,215 100% — 0% —
Net loss $ (4,904) -759% (571) 30% (821)
SELECTED TPA SEGMENT INFORMATION
Covered lives under employee benefit programs 109,171 31% 83,637 -23% 108,174
Covered lives under workers’ compensation programs 38,100 1% 37,700 6% 35,600

Claims administration and management fees increased
1% to $12.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2002
from $12.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2001.
Our results of operations for the period ended December
31,2001 include our Albuquerque TPA division, which was
disposed of in December 2001. Excluding the effect of the
Albuquerque TPA division, claims administration and
management fees increased $2.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002, when compared with the year ended
December 31, 2001. The increase in claims administration
and management fees reflects growth in new business.

Claims administration and management fees declined
3% to $12.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2001
from $13.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2000.
The decline in claims administration and management
fees is due to the termination of certain non-profitable
contracts at our Albuquerque division. Excluding the
effect of the terminated contracts, claims administration
and management fees increased $1.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2001, as compared to the same period
in 2000.

Commission income was $2.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002 and relatively flat when compared to

commission income for the year ended December 31, 2001.
The amount of premium placed by the TPA segment
increased during the years 2002 and 2001; however, we
decreased the commission rates paid by customers during
2002 and as a result, commission income was relatively
flat when compared with the prior year.

Commission income increased 19% to $2.5 million for
the year ended December 31, 2001 from $2.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2000. The increase in com-
mission income corresponds with increases in the under-
lying rates paid by customers for reinsurance being
placed by the TPA segment under alternative market
arrangements.

Net realized investment losses for the year ended
December 31, 2000 were $0.4 million, largely due to the
write down of our investment in a joint venture, Bexar
Credentials, Inc. (“Bexar”) in the fourth quarter of 2000.
Our stock in Bexar was redeemed for $70 thousand in cash
and notes receivable in January 2001. All amounts receiv-
able from the sale have been collected.

Claims administration and management expenses
decreased 6% to $14.0 million for the year ended December
31, 2002 from $14.8 million for the year ended December 31,




2001. The decline in claims administration and manage-
ment expenses is due to the disposition of our
Albuquerque division. Excluding the effect of the
Albuquerque TPA division, claims administration and
management expenses increased $2.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002, when compared with the year
ended December 31, 2001. The increase in claims adminis-
tration and management expenses is due to additional
expenses incurred as the result of new business.

Claims administration and management expenses
declined 5%, to $14.8 million for the year ended December
31, 2001 from $15.5 million for the year ended December
31, 2000. The decline in claims administration and man-
agement expenses is due to the termination of certain
non-profitable contracts at our Albuquerque division.
Excluding the effect of the terminated contracts, claims
administration and management expenses increased $1.0
million for the year ended December 31, 2001, as com-
pared to the same period in 2000.

Other expenses decreased 100% for the year ended
December 31, 2002 from $1.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2001. The decline in other expenses is due to
the adoption of FAS 142. In accordance with FAS 142, we
ceased the amortization of goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible assets during the first quarter of 2002. In addi-
tion, and as noted above, in 2001 we recognized a pre-tax
charge of approximately $0.6 million in connection with
the disposition of the Brokerage Services, Inc. ("BSI") divi-
sion of EMI in Albuquerque, New Mexico, which did not
recur in 2002.

The TPA segment also recorded a transitional impair-
ment charge of $56.2 million, after-tax in 2002, which is
accounted for as the cumulative effect of accounting
change. In our opinion, the non-cash transitional impair-
ment charge primarily reflects changes in market condi-
tions and an increase in competition in recent years in the
markets served by the TPA segment.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, other expenses
decreased 28%, to $1.3 million from $1.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2000. Excluding the restructur-
ing charges taken during the fourth quarter of 2001 and
2000 mentioned below, other expenses declined 46%, to
$0.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, from
$1.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2000. The
decrease in other expenses represents savings from our
disposition of non-core businesses during 2000.

During the fourth quarter 2001, we incurred a pre-tax
charge of approximately $0.6 million in connection with
the disposition of BSI. Under the plan, we sold the divi-
sion’s assets and cancelled its service agreements with
self-insured customers. Certain other contracts were
retained and are serviced by our Jacksonville, Florida,
division. The 2001 restructuring activity was a continua-
tion of our consolidation of the TPA operations and con-
cluded the restructuring activities of the Albuquerque
division that began during 2000. We incurred a pre-tax
charge of $0.5 million in 2000 related to this now disposed
of division. Excluding the effects of the restructuring
charges, the TPA segment incurred a net loss of approxi-
mately $0.2 million and $0.5 million for the years 2001 and
2000, respectively.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND AMALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL POSITION: DECEMBER 31, 2002
COMPARED TO DECEMBER 31, 2001

Cash and invested assets increased 22% to $538.7 million
as of December 31, 2002 from $442.0 million as of
December 31, 2001. The increase in cash and invested
assets is due primarily to the growth in premiums and
related cash flows from operating activities, which
increased the amounts available for investment.

Premiums receivable increased 48% to $108.5 million as
of December 30, 2002 from $73.4 million as of December
31, 2001. Approximately $28.3 million of the increase in
premiums receivable is associated with growth in premi-
ums written on our core MPL insurance business.
Approximately $6.7 million of the increase in premiums
receivable is associated with growth in premiums written
under fronting arrangements for workers’ compensation
business.

Due from reinsurers on unpaid losses and advance pre-
miums increased 109% to $168.2 million as of December
31, 2002 from $80.4 million as of December 31, 2001.
Approximately $38.8 million of the increase is associated
with reserves ceded under the finite reinsurance agree-
ment with Hannover Re. The remaining increase in due
from reinsurers on unpaid losses and advance premiums
is primarily the result of the increase in the underlying
reserves ceded to other insurance carriers under reinsur-
ance arrangements associated with growth in our core
MPL insurance business.
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Ceded unearned premiums increased 93% to $78.9 mil-
lion as of December 31, 2002 from $40.8 million as of
December 31, 2001. Approximately $37.4 million of the
increase is associated with the unearned premiums ceded
under the finite reinsurance agreement with Hannover Re.

On August 2, 2002, Gerling Global Reinsurance
Corporation of America {“Gerling”), one of our reinsurers,
had its financial strength rating lowered by A.M. Best
from A- (Excellent) to B+ (Very Good). On December 20,
2002, Gerling’s A.M. Best rating was further downgraded
to B- (Fair). These rating actions by A.M. Best followed an
announcement by Gerling of its intention to exit the U.S.
non-life reinsurance market. Since then, Gerling has
essentially placed itself in voluntary run-off with respect
to its U.S. non-life reinsurance business and A.M. Best has
withdrawn Gerling's financial strength rating and
replaced it with the designation “NR-3,” which means that
A M. Best's rating methodology no longer applies. Gerling
has participated in our excess of loss reinsurance pro-
grams in 2000 at 15%, and in 2001 and 2002 at 20%.
Gerling has also provided facultative reinsurance cover-
age for non-standard risks. We replaced Gerling’s partici-
pation in our reinsurance programs, effective with our
renewal, as of January 1, 2003. As of December 31, 2002,
the estimated amount of net reinsurance recoverables
from Gerling was approximately $13 million, comprised of
the gross recoverables from Gerling, less reinsurance
payables to Gerling of approximately $4 million. Gerling is
an authorized reinsurer in our markets; therefore, we do
not hold collateral for these reinsurance recoverables.

Gerling's actions, including placing itself in run-off
with respect to its U.S. non-life reinsurance business, have
been voluntary and as recently as March 10, 2003, it has
publicly stated that it is paying its outstanding claims.
Consequently, we currently expect that Gerling will fully
meet its obligations to us. We will continue to monitor
developments at Gerling and should its financial condi-
tion worsen, we could, in-turn, recognize a charge for
uncollectible reinsurance recoverables.

Deferred income taxes increased 74% to $34.7 million as
of December 31, 2002 from $19.9 million as of December
31, 2001. The increase in deferred income taxes is prima-
rily due to the adoption of FAS 142. As a result of the tran-
sitional impairment tests required by FAS 142, in 2002, we
recognized a one-time, non-cash pre-tax charge of $48.4
million and recorded deferred tax assets for tax-
deductible goodwill, in the amount of $18.8 million.

Goodwill decreased 72% to $18.9 million as of December
31, 2002 from $67.2 million as of December 31, 2001. The
decrease in goodwill is due to the adoption of FAS 142. As
a result of the transitional impairment tests required by
FAS 142, we reduced the carrying value of goodwill at our
reciprocal management and TPA segments. The transition-
al impairment charge at the reciprocal management seg-
ment primarily reflects certain intangibles and synergies,
which, in our opinion, are opportunistic in nature and
carry a relatively higher degree of uncertainty; therefore,
we treated these intangibles conservatively in the valua-
tion required by FAS 142. The transitional impairment
charge at the TPA segment primarily reflects changes in
market conditions and an increase in competition in
recent years in the markets served by the TPA segment.

Other assets increased 313% to $54.6 million as of
December 31, 2002 from $13.2 million as of December 31,
2001. Approximately $38.2 million of the increase in other
assets is due to the sale of investments for which the pro-
ceeds from the sale had not been received at December 31,
2002 and a receivable from the broker was recorded. The
increase in other assets is also attributable to receivables
for amounts due under our fronting programs and an
increase in amounts due from PRI related to a change in
the management agreement between AFP and PRI, partial-
ly offset by the receipt of a state tax refund due to the
overpayment of estimated taxes in 2001.

The liability for losses and LAE increased 38% to $440.2
million as of December 31, 2002 from $318.5 million as of
December 31, 2001. Excluding the effect of the return of
loss and LAE reserves of approximately $9.3 million on
business previously assumed from PRI, which was com-
muted in the first quarter of 2002, the increase in our lia-
bility for loss and LAE was approximately $131.0 million.
The increase in the liability for losses and LAE is primari-
ly attributable to the growth in our core MPL book of busi-
ness, taking into consideration expected loss trends and
other pertinent considerations.

The loss and LAE reserves represent our best estimate
of the ultimate cost of all losses incurred but unpaid and
considers prior loss experience, loss trends, our loss
retention levels and the expected frequency and severity
of claims. The process of establishing reserves for property
and casualty claims is a complex and uncertain process,
requiring the use of informed estimates and judgments.
Our estimates and judgments may be revised as additional
experience and other data become available and are




reviewed, as new or improved methodologies are devel-
oped or as the current legal environment affecting the set-
tlement of our liability claims changes. Any such changes
could result in future revisions in the estimates of losses
or reinsurance recoverables, and would be reflected in our
results of operations for the most recent period being
reported coinciding with when the change occurs. We
believe our liability for losses and LAE is adequate; how-
ever, given the inherent uncertainty in reserve estimates,
there can be no assurance that the ultimate amount of
actual losses will not exceed the related amounts current-
ly estimated. Furthermore, any such difference, either pos-
itive or negative, could have a material effect on our
results of operations and financial position.

Unearned premiums increased 18% to $173.4 million as
of December 31, 2002 from $146.8 million as of December
31, 2001. The increase in unearned premiums is the result
of the growth in premiums written at our insurance
subsidiaries.

Reinsurance payable increased 261% to $96.5 million as
of December 31, 2002 from $26.7 million as of December
31, 2001. Approximately $60.2 million of the increase is
the result of funds withheld under the terms of the finite
reinsurance agreement with Hannover Re. The remaining
increase in reinsurance payable is primarily the result of
an increase in MPL premiums written.

Paid in advance and unprocessed premiums increased
41% to $14.1 million as of December 31, 2002 from $9.9
million as of December 31, 2001. The increase in paid in
advance and unprocessed premiums is primarily the
result of growth in our core MPL book of business.

Accrued expenses and other liabilities increased 142%
to $75.7 million as of December 31, 2002 from $31.3 mil-
lion as of December 31, 2001. Approximately $32.6 million
of the increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities is
related to the purchase of investments for which the costs
from the purchase had not been paid at December 31, 2002
and a payable to broker was recorded. Approximately $4.9
million of the increase in accrued expenses and other lia-
bilities is related to commissions payable associated with
an increase in insurance business.

STGCK REPURCHASE PLANS

Under our stock repurchase programs, we may repurchase
shares at such times, and in such amounts, as manage-
ment deems appropriate, subject to the requirement of our

credit facility. In accordance with an amendment to our
credit facility dated November 21, 2002, we must obtain
the consent of our lenders to repurchase any of our stock.
We did not repurchase any shares during 2002. Since the
commencement of these repurchase programs, we have
repurchased 875,000 of our shares at a cost of approxi-
mately $16.2 million. A total of 365,500 shares remain
available to be repurchased under the programs.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESDURCES

The payment of losses and LAE, operating expenses, inter-
est expense and income taxes in the ordinary course of
business and the repayment of debt and assignment of
collateral are the principal needs for our liquid funds.
Cash provided by operating activities has been used to
pay these items and was sufficient during 2002 to meet
these needs. As reported in the consolidated statement of
cash flows, we generated positive net cash from operating
activities of $98.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2002. At December 31, 2002, we had cash and cash equiv-
alents of $86.6 million and held fixed maturity debt secu-
rities with a fair value of approximately $9.2 million with
scheduled maturities during the next twelve months. We
believe that cash and cash equivalents as of December 31,
2002, combined with cash flows from operating activities
and the scheduled maturities of investments in 2003, will
be sufficient to meet our cash needs for operating purpos-
es for at least the next twelve months. A number of factors
could cause unexpected changes in liquidity and capital
resources available, including but not limited to the fol-
lowing: (i} unexpected changes in premium revenue due to
higher or lower than expected new business or retention
of insurance policies in force; (ii) unexpected changes in
the amounts needed to defend and settle claims; (iii) unex-
pected changes in operating costs, including new or
increased taxes; (iv) failure of one or more of our reinsur-
ers leading to uncollectible reinsurance recoverables; (v)
possible impairments of our long term investments; and
(vi) uncertainties surrounding the availability and costs
associated with our bank credit financing.

Furthermore, liquidity and capital risks can come about
as the result of the broader business and financial risks
facing us including the uncertainties and factors dis-
closed in the Safe Harbor Disclosure. Many, if not most of
these types of uncertainties, could have a corresponding
and materially negative affect on our liquidity and capital
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resources, as well as our financial condition and results of
operations. In order to compensate for such risk, we: (i)
maintain what management considers to be adequate
reinsurance; (ii) monitor our reserve positions and regu-
larly perform actuarial reviews of loss and LAE reserves;
and (iii} attempt to maintain adequate asset diversifica-
tion and liquidity (by managing our cash flow from oper-
ations coupled with the maturities from our fixed income
portfolio investments).

As of December 31, 2002, we had an outstanding princi-
pal balance of $47.2 million under a senior credit facility
with five banks. The senior credit facility is comprised of
{i) a $37.5 million revolving credit facility (with a $15 mil-
lion letter of credit sub-facility), which matures on August
31, 2004, and (ii) a $10.2 million term loan facility,
repayable in quarterly installments of approximately $1.5
million. We have also deposited $3.0 million (of which,
$1.0 million was deposited in January 2003) as collateral
under the terms of the credit facility, and are required to
either pre-pay principal or make additional collateral
deposits of $0.35 million quarterly in 2003. The credit
facility also requires that we pre-pay principal or make
additional collateral deposits of approximately $1.3 mil-
lion each at March 31 and June 30, 2004. Amounts out-
standing under the credit facility bear interest at a vari-
able rate, primarily based upon LIBOR plus a current mar-
gin of 3.0 percentage points, which may be reduced to a
minimum of 2.75 percentage points as we reduce our out-
standing indebtedness. In connection with our credit
facility, we also entered into two-interest rate swap agree-
ments (the “swap agreements”). We use the swap agree-
ments to minimize fluctuations in cash flows caused by
interest rate volatility and to effectively convert all of our
floating-rate debt to fixed-rate debt.

We are not required to maintain compensating balances
in connection with our credit facility but we are charged a
fee on the unused portion, which ranges from 30 to 40
basis points. Under the terms of the credit facility, we are
required to meet certain financial and non-financial
covenants. Significant covenants are as follows: (i} total
debt to cash flow available for debt service may not
exceed 3.00:1; {ii) combined net premiums written to com-
bined statutory capital and surplus may not exceed 1.75:1;
(iii) funded debt to total capital plus funded debt may not
exceed 0.27:1; (iv) the fixed charge coverage ratio may not
be less than 2.00:1 at the end of each quarter through
December 31, 2002, and thereafter the fixed charge cover-

age ratio may not be less than 2.25:1; and (v) combined
gross premiums written to combined statutory capital
and surplus may not exceed 2.75:1,

The credit facility also contains minimum equity and
risk-based capital requirements and requires our insur-
ance subsidiary, First Professionals, to maintain at least a
B++ (Very Good) group rating from A.M. Best.

Should we fail to meet one or more of our loan
covenants, such occurrence would be considered an event
of default. If we were unable to provide an acceptable res-
olution for an event of default, our lenders would have the
right to demand immediate repayment in full. Although
we have consolidated cash and investments on hand and”
net cash flows from operating activities in excess of our
outstanding debt, as explained further below, most of
these funds are held and generated by our insurance sub-
sidiaries, which are subject to regulatory requirements to
maintain capital and surplus and dividend restrictions.
Therefore, the majority of these funds are not available to
the holding company. So, if repayment of our loans were
accelerated, FPIC may not have sufficient liquidity from
immediately available operating funds. In the case of a
significant acceleration or demand for repayment in full,
we may be required to secure replacement financing, raise
additional capital, restructure our operations or sell
assets, or a combination of these, in order to raise the
funds necessary to repay our loans. Any such circum-
stances would likely have a material detrimental impact
on our results of operations and financial condition.

On October 23, 2002, A.M. Best announced its decision
to change our insurance group rating from A- (Excellent)
with a negative outlook to B++ (Very Good) with a stable
outlook. As a result of the rating change, we were tem-
porarily in non-compliance with the credit facility. As a
result of such non-compliance, we negotiated an amend-
ment to the credit facility with our lenders. The terms and
conditions of the credit facility described above reflect
this amendment.

Shareholder dividends available from our insurance
subsidiaries are subject to certain limitations imposed by
Florida and Missouri laws. During 2003, these sub-
sidiaries are permitted, within insurance regulatory
guidelines, to pay dividends of approximately $12.5 mil-
lion without prior regulatory approval.

The National Association of Insurance Commissioners
has developed risk-based capital (“RBC”) measurements
for insurers, which have been adopted by the Florida and




Missouri Departments of Insurance. RBC measurements
provide state regulators with varying levels of authority
based on the adequacy of an insurer’s adjusted surplus.
At December 31, 2002, our insurance subsidiaries main-
tained adjusted surplus in excess of their required RBC
thresholds.

Our insurance subsidiaries are also subject to assess-
ment by the financial guaranty associations in the states
in which they conduct business for the provision of funds
necessary for the settlement of covered claims under cer-
tain policies of insolvent insurers. Generally, these associ-
ations can assess member insurers on the basis of written
premiums in their particular states. In addition to stan-
dard assessments, the Florida and Missouri Legislatures
may also levy special assessments to settle claims caused
by certain catastrophic losses. We would be assessed on a
basis of premiums written. During 2001, a special assess-
ment was levied on First Professionals and APAC that
totaled $0.9 million. No special assessments were made in
2002 or 2000. In addition, we could be subject to addition-
al assessments in the future as a result of damages caused
by catastrophic losses, such as a hurricane.

ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB"} issued FAS 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated
with Exit or Disposal Activities.” FAS 146 addresses finan-
cial accounting and reporting for costs associated with
exit or disposal activities. It requires that the cost associ-
ated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized when
the liability is incurred, not necessarily at the date of an
entity's commitment to an exit plan. As a result, some
costs relating to the disposition may be deferred until
later periods when they are incurred. The provisions of
FAS 146 are effective for exit or disposal activities initiat-
ed after December 31, 2002. Accordingly, we will adopt
this statement for applicable transactions occurring on or
after January 1, 2003.

FAS 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-
Transition and Disclosure,” amends FAS 123, “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation,” to provide transition
guidance for a change to the fair value based method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In
addition, this statement amends the disclosure require-
ments of FAS 123 for both annual and interim financial

statements. FAS 148 is effective December 31, 2002. The
adoption of FAS 148 did not have a material effect on our
financial statements. The disclosure requirements of FAS
148 have been incorporated into Note 19 to the consolidat-
ed financial statements.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation
No. (“FIN"} 45, "Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” FIN 45 expands
existing accounting guidance and disclosure require-
ments for certain guarantees and requires the recognition
of a liability for the fair value of certain types of guaran-
tees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. We do not
believe that the adoption of FIN 45's guidance will have a
material effect on our financial position.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, “Consolidation
of Variable Interest Entities.” FIN 46 addresses whether
certain types of entities, referred to as variable interest
entities (“VIEs"), should be consolidated in a company's
financial statements. A VIE is an entity that either (1) has
equity investors that lack certain essential characteristics
of a controlling financial interest (including the ability to
control the entity, the obligation to absorb the entity's
expected losses and the right to receive the entity's
expected residual returns), or (2) lacks sufficient equity to
finance its own activities without financial support pro-
vided by other entities, which in turn would be expected
to absorb at least some of the expected losses of the VIE.
An entity should consoclidate a VIE if it stands to absorb a
majority of the VIE's expected losses or to receive a major-
ity of the VIE's expected residual returns. The provisions
of FIN 46 are effective immediately for all VIEs created
after January 31, 2003. With respect to VIEs created before
February 1, 2003, FIN 46 would become effective for pub-
lic companies no later than the beginning of the first
interim or annual period beginning after June 15, 2003
(i.e., third calendar quarter of 2003). FIN 46 also requires
that if it is reasonably possible that an enterprise will
consolidate or disclose information about a VIE when it
does become effective, that the enterprise is required to
disclose certain information about it in all financial state-
ments initially issued after January 31, 2003. We have con-
sidered the guidance contained in FIN 46 and, to date,
have not identified any interests or relationships that we
believe would be a variable interest in a VIE, as defined.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS conrmuen

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse
changes in market and economic conditions, such as
changes in interest rates, spreads among various asset
classes, foreign currency exchange rates, and other rele-
vant market rate or price changes. Market risk is directly
influenced by the volatility and liquidity in the markets in
which the related underlying assets are traded. The fol-
lowing is a discussion of our primary market risk expo-
sures and how we managed those exposures as of
December 31, 2002. Our market risk sensitive instruments
are entered into for purposes other than trading.

The fair value of our debt and equity investment portfo-
lio as of December 31, 2002 was approximately $437.0 mil-
lion. Our investment portfolio was invested primarily in
fixed maturity securities. The fixed maturity portfolio cur-
rently maintains an average Moody's credit quality of AA.
We invest in securities with investment grade credit rat-
ings, with the intent to minimize credit risks. As of
December 31, 2002, our investments in below investment
grade securities were less than 1% of the fixed income
portfolio. These securities were downgraded subsequent
to acquisition by FPIC. Approximately 54% of the fixed
income portfolio is invested in securities rated AAA or its
equivalent by investment rating services, 14% is AA, 19% is
A, and 12% is BBB. We purchased collateral mortgage obli-
gations in the context of our overall investment and asset
class allocation strategy and, specifically, to help improve
our yields and current income. Approximately 20% of our
fixed income portfolio is allocated to the municipal sector.
The balance is diversified through investments in treasury,
agency, and corporate and mortgage-backed securities.

Generally, we do not invest in derivatives and do not
currently use hedging strategies in our investment portfo-
lio. However, we do have investments in two interest rate
swaps to fix the interest rate in connection with our
revolving credit facility and term loan.

The four market risks that can most directly affect the
investment portfolio are changes in U.S. interest rates,
credit risks, prepayment risks, and legislative changes,
including changes in tax laws that might affect the taxa-
tion of our invested securities.

From time to time discussion arises in the United States
Congress relative to changing or modifying the tax-
exempt status of municipal securities. We stay abreast of
possible legislative acts that could adversely affect the
tax-exempt status of municipal securities. At present,
there are no hedging or other strategies being used to min-
imize this risk. However, we have also reduced our concen-
tration in tax-exempt municipal securities during 2002, as
part of our overall investment strategy.

We manage risks associated with the changes in inter-
est rates by attempting to manage the duration of our
investments in relation to the duration of our anticipated
liabilities {principally claim payments and related defense
costs). Effective duration is a standard measure of inter-
est rate sensitivity, which takes into account, among other
things, the effect that changing interest rates will have on
prepayments and the re-investment of these funds. The
effective duration of our investment portfolio as of
December 31, 2002 was 4.8 years. If prevailing market
interest rates on investments in debt securities compara-
ble to those we held as of December 31, 2002 were to
increase 100 basis points, the fair value of our fixed matu-
rity securities would have decreased approximately $21.0
million.




The amounts reported as cash flows in the table below
for fixed maturities represent par values at maturity date,
and exclude investment income and expenses and other
cash flows. The fair values of fixed maturities are based
upon quoted market prices or dealer quotes for comparable
securities. The projected cash flows of the credit facility

and term loan and operating leases approximate fair value
as of December 31, 2002. The fair value of the interest rate
swaps is estimated using quotes from brokers and repre-
sents the cash requirement if the existing agreement had
been settled at year-end.

PROJECTED CASH FLOWS {1l THOUSANDS)
DECENBER 31,
2082

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 THEREAFTER TaTal FAIR VALUE

ASSETS
Fixed maturity securities,

Available for sale $ 6,997 34,285 35,095 25,694 36,159 265482 404,412 436,970
LIABILITIES

Credit facility™ $ —  (37,000) — -~ — — {37,000} (37,0000

Term loan" $ (5,833} (4,375) — — — — {10,208}  (10,208)

Interest rate swaps 3 — — — — — — — (3,383)

Operating leases $ (3,005} (3.036) (2,886} (2,529) (2,023} (3,659) (17.138) (17,138)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE INTEREST RATE

Fixed maturity securities 5.78% 4.65% 6.88% 6.16% 5.82% 6.13%

Credit facility 4.19% 4.13% — — — —

Term loan 4.21% 4.13% —_ -— —_ —_—

Interest rate swaps 4.98% 5.02% — — — —_

(1} In accordance with our amended Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement, we are also required to make mandatory principal prepayments on
our Term Loan or provide liquid collateral acceptable to our lenders, in the amount of $0.35 million quarterly in 2003 and $1.3 million at March 31 and

June 30, 2004.

CHANGES I AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS
0N ACCOUNYING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There were no changes in or disagreements with our
accountants on accounting and financial disclosure
matters.

}%



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
FPIC Insurance Group, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position and the related consolidated statements
of (loss) income and comprehensive (loss) income, changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows, present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of FPIC Insurance Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2002 and
2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December
31, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. We conducted our audits of these statements in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstate-
ment. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Notes 2 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2002, the Company changed

its method of accounting for goodwill following adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 142
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

Meﬁp&w@% ZLr

Jacksonville, Florida
February 20, 2003




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FPIC INSURANCE GROUP, INC.

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001 (in thousands, except common share data)

2002 2001
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 86,589 75,220
Bonds and U.S. Government securities, available for sale 436,970 348,949
Equity securities, available for sale 6 8
Other invested assets 10,801 13,534
Real estate 4,354 4,255
Total cash and investments 538,720 441,966
Premiums receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of $400 and $734 in 2002 and 2001, respectively 108,494 73,362
Accrued investment income 5,998 4,605
Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses 6,529 7,305
Due from reinsurers on unpaid losses and advance premiums 168,159 80,410
Ceded unearned premiums 78,889 40,794
Property and equipment, net 4,334 4,727
Deferred policy acquisition costs 4,452 9,001
Deferred income taxes 34,653 19,944
Prepaid expenses 1,744 1,664
Goodwill 18,870 67,232
Intangible assets 1,034 1,317
Federal income tax receivable — 5,273
Other assets 54,555 13,222
Total assets $1,026,431 770,822
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Losses and loss adjustment expenses $ 440,166 318,483
Unearned premiums 173,421 146,761
Reinsurance payable 96,470 26,689
Paid in advance and unprocessed premiums 14,060 9,942
Revolving credit facility 37,000 37,000
Term loan 10,208 16,042
Deferred credit 8,748 10,007
Deferred ceding commission 4,669 —
Federal income tax payable 120 —
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 75,655 31,324
Total liabilities 860,518 596,248
Commitments and contingencies (Note 17)
Common stock, $.10 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized; 9,390,795 and 9,337,755
shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively 939 934
Additional paid-in capital 38,322 37,837
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 5,525 {26)
Retained earnings 121,127 135,829
| Total shareholders’ equity 165,913 174,574
:‘ Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $1,026,431 770,822

N -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF (LOSS) INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE (L0OSS) INCOME
FPIC INSURANCE GROUP, INC.
For the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 (in thousands, except common share data)

2092 2001 2080
REVENUES
Net premiums earned $151,684 131,058 120,454
Claims administration and management fees 37,034 35,504 30,026
Net investment income 19,902 23,377 24,819
Commission income 6,215 5,048 3,469
Net realized investment gains (losses) 4,688 1,429 91)
Finance charge and other income 1,342 1,166 3,412
Total revenues 220,865 197,582 182,089
EXPENSES
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 139,571 128,346 122,766
Other underwriting expenses 19,155 25,883 20,640
Claims administration and management expenses 32,898 33,204 30,569
Interest expense 5,040 4,566 4,291
Other expenses . 49 4,497 6,795
Total expenses 197,155 196,496 185,061
Income (loss) before income taxes and cumulative effect of
accounting change 23,710 1,086 (2,972)
Less: Income tax expense (benefit) 8,834 (1,844} (3,586)
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change 14,876 2,930 614
Less: Cumulative effect of accounting change (net of an
$18,784 deferred income tax benefit, Note 10) 29,578 — —
Net (loss) income $ (14,702) 2,930 614
Basic (loss) earnings per common share $ (1.57) 0.31 0.06
Diluted (loss} earnings per common share $ (1.56) 0.31 0.06
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 9,387 9,383 9,497
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 9,432 9,468 9,571
COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME
Net (loss) income $(14,702) 2,930 614
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Cumulative effect of accounting change — 124 —
Unrealized holding gains on debt and equity securities 8,966 1,198 14,697
Unrealized holding losses and amortization on derivative
financial instruments (183) (2,819) —
Income tax (benefit) expense related to unrealized gains and losses (3,232) 503 (5,234)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 5,551 (994) 9,463
Comprehensive (logs) income $ (9,151} 1,936 10,077

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
FPIC INSURANCE GROUP, INC.
For the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 (in thousands)

./

. ACC[l]I%_YIULATED
HER .
COMMON ADDITIONAL UNEARNED GOMPREHENSIVE ~ RETAINED
STOCK PAID-IN CAPITAL  COMPEMNSATION INCOME EARNINGS TOTAL
Balance, December 31, 1999 $ 962 41,858 (231) (8,495) 132,285 166,379
Net income — — — — 614 614
Compensation earned on
issuance of stock options — — 126 —_ — 126
Unrealized gain on debt
and equity securities, net — — — 9,463 — 9,463
Repurchase of shares, net (24) (4,031) — — — (4,055)
Balance, December 31, 2000 938 37,827 (105) 968 132,899 172,527
Net income — — — — 2,830 2,830
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle (Note 2) — - — 124 — 124
Compensation earned on
issuance of stock options — — 105 — = 105
Unrealized gain on debt
and equity securities, net —_ — — 778 — 778
Unrealized loss on derivative
financial instruments, net — — — (1,896) — (1,896)
Repurchase of shares, net (4) 10 — — — 6
Balance, December 31, 2001 934 © 37,837 — (286) 135,829 174,574
Net loss — — — — (14,702) . (14,702)
Unrealized gain on debt
and equity securities, net — — — 5,665 — 5,565
Unrealized loss on derivative
financial instruments, net — — — (270} — (270)
Amortization of unrealized loss on
derivative financial instruments — — — 256 — 256
Issuance of shares 5 485 — — — 490
Balance, December 31, 2002 $ 939 38,322 — 5,625 121,127 165,913

The accompanytng notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FPIC INSURANCE GROUP, INC.
For the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 (in thousands)

.

2052 2001 2000

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net (loss) income : $ (14,702) 2,930 614

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to cash provided by
operating activities:

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of deferred tax benefit 29,578 124 —
Depreciation, amortization and accretion 7,960 14,398 9,916
Realized (gain) loss on sale of investments (4,688) (1,429) 91
Realized loss (gain) on sale of property and equipment 93 (17) 46
Noncash compensation — 105 126
Net loss from equity investments 110 511 188
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 844 (973) (3,276)
Bad debt expense 668 191 1,139

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Premiums receivable, net {35,800} (37,073) (2,651)
Accrued investment income ‘ (1,393} 1,327 {(506)
Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses 776 614 6,830
Due from reinsurers on unpaid losses and advance premiums {87,749) (22,712) 702
Ceded unearned premiums (38,095) (30,687) (3,824}
Deferred policy acquisition costs {5,403} (12,292) (9,281)
Prepaid expenses {80) (2) (536)
Federal income tax receivable (payable) 5,443 3,246 (4,390)
Other assets (3,155) (2,698) (2,230)
Loss and loss adjustment expenses 121,683 37,188 8,203
Unearned premiums 26,660 46,695 7,763
Reinsurance payable 69,781 20,171 3,179
Paid in advance and unprocessed premiums 4,118 3,796 687
Deferred ceding commission 10,691 — —
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 10,786 9,829 2,051
Net cash provided by operating activities 98,126 33,242 14,841

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sale or maturity of bonds and U.S. Government securities 313,313 221,596 59,373
Purchase of bonds and U.S. Government securities (395,070) (182,930) (69,351)
Proceeds from sale of equity securities — 566 966
Purchase of equity securities —_ (53) —
Proceeds from sale of other invested assets 2,682 477 —
Purchase of other invested assets (48) — (813)
Proceeds from sale of real estate — — 302
Purchase of real estate investments (385) (112) —
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 22 165 19
Purchase of property and equipment (1,876) (2,527) (1,931)
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary — — 185
Purchase of subsidiary’s net other assets and stock — — (5)
Purchase of goodwill and intangible assets — — (1,895)
Net cash {used in) provided by investing activities (81,362) 37,182 {3,150}

Continued on next page.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (conrmnuen)
FPIC INSURANCE GROUP, INC.
For the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 (in thousands)

2002 2601 2000
Cash flows from financing activities: )
Receipt of proceeds from revolving credit facility and term loan — 54,500 4,500
Payment on revolving credit facility {5,833) (68,677) —
Issuance of common stock 438 238 1,824
Buyback of common stock —_ (232) (5,878)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (5,395) (14,171) 446
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 11,369 56,253 12,137
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 75,220 18,967 6,830
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 86,589 75,220 18,967
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow activities:
Interest paid 4,718 4,190 3,769
Federal income taxes paid $ 6,293 540 3,556
Federal income tax refunds received $ 4,958 3,300 —
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing activities:
Effective January 1, 2000, our insurance subsidiaries
entered into a 100% quota share reinsurance agreement to
assume the death, disability, and retirement risks under
Physicians' Reciprocal Insurers’ ("PRI") claims made insurance
policies. We received cash and bonds in exchange for
business assumed from PRI recorded as follows:
Assumed unearned premium $ — — 33,749
Reduction in net goodwill and intangible assets — — 13,205
Receipt of bonds at market — — (44,194)
Net cash received $ — — 2,760

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



NOTES TO THE CONSGLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FPIC IMSYRANGE GROUP, 1NS.

Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts and elsewhere as noted

NOTE 1 common stock for each share of their First Professionals’
OREANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS common stock. McCreary also became a subsidiary of
FPIC. Effective January 1, 2002, McCreary was merged
into its subsidiary, Employers Mutual, Inc. {"EMI"), with
EMI continuing as the surviving entity. FPIC and its sub-
sidiaries operate in three business segments: Insurance,
Reciprocal Management and Third-Party Administration
{(“TPA”"). The following table provides additional informa-
tion about FPIC, its business segments and subsidiaries.

FPIC Insurance Group, Inc. (“FPIC") was formed in 1996 in
a reorganization of First Professionals Insurance
Company, Inc. (“First Professionals,” formerly named
Florida Physicians Insurance Company, Inc.) and
McCreary Corporation (“McCreary”). Under the reorgani-
zation plan, First Professionals’ shareholders became the
shareholders of FPIC. They received five shares of FPIC

SEEHENT

UATURE GF BUSINESS, PRGSULTS AD SZRVICES ANE CCMPANMIES

INSURANCE - Specializes in professional liability insurance products and related risk management services for physicians,
dentists, and other healthcare providers.

+ FPIC subsidiaries™:

- First Professionals
» The Tenere Group, Inc. (“Tenere”)
- Intermed Insurance Company (“Intermed”)

- Interlex Insurance Company (“Interlex”)

« Insurance Services, Inc, ("Insurance Services”)

« Trout Insurance Services, Inc.
» Anesthesiologists Professional Assurance Company (“APAC")
+ FPIC Insurance Agency, Inc. ("FPIC Agency”)

« Medical professional liability (“MPL"} and legal professional liability (“LPL’) insurance is primarily written
in Florida and Missourl. FPIC is also licensed to write insurance in Alabama, Arizona, Arkansas, Delaware,
Georgia, [llinois, Indiana, Kansas, Kentucky, Maine, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, Montana,
Nevada, North Carolina, Ohio, Oregon, Pennsylvania, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Virginia,
Washington and West Virginia.

+ Effective December 1, 2002, Interlex ceased writing LPL Insurance. Interlex sold the renewal rights to its LPL
policies to an unrelated insurance organization on October 3, 2002.

(1) FPIC, the holding company, is also grouped within the insurance segment.

RECIPROCAL « Provides management, administrative and brokerage services to Physicians’ Reciprocal Insurers (“FRI), a
MANAGEMENT professional liability insurance reciprocal that conducts business in the state of New York. (PRI is not a sub-
sidiary of FPIC.) Reciprocal Management also provides reinsurance brokerage and administrative services to
FPIC.
- FPIC subsidiaries:
« Administrators For The Professions, Inc. (‘"AFP")
- FPIC Intermediaries, Inc. (“FPIC Intermediaries”)
« Group Data Corporation {“Group Data”)
» Professional Medical Administrators, LLC {(“PMA”") (70% cwned by FPIC as of December 31, 2002; effective
January 1, 2003, FPIC has an 80% ownership interest in PMA.)

PA : » Provides administrative and claims management services to self-insured employer groups for group accident
and health insurance, workers’ compensation insurance and general liability and property insurance plans,
« FPIG subsidiaries:
+ EMI
« Professional Strategy Options, Inc.
- FPIC Services, Inc.




The main sources of revenue for FPIC are dividends and
management fees from our subsidiaries. The main sources
of revenue for the subsidiaries are premiums earned and
investment income (insurance segment) and claims
administration and management fees and commission
income (reciprocal management and TPA segments).

Risks inherent in FPIC's operations include legal/regu-
latory risk, credit risk, underwriting risk and market risk.
These risks are discussed below.

Legal/Regulatory Risk is the risk that changes in the
legal or regulatory environment in which FPIC operates
will change and create additional costs or expenses not
anticipated in pricing our products. That is, regulatory ini-
tiatives designed to reduce FPIC's profits or new legal the-
ories may create costs for FPIC beyond those currently
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. This
risk is concentrated in Florida, Missouri and New York,
where FPIC has written or assumed approximately 52%,
20% and 13%, respectively, of the insurance and reinsur-
ance business we have retained for our own account.

Credit Risk is the risk that issuers of securities owned
by FPIC will default, or other parties, primarily our
insureds and reinsurers that owe FPIC money, will not
pay. Financial instruments that potentially expose FPIC to
concentrations of credit risk consist of fixed maturity
investments, premiums receivable, deposits with reinsur-
ers, and assets carried for reinsurance recoverable related
to unpaid losses and LAE and unearned premiums.
Reinsurers that are neither authorized nor accredited by
applicable state insurance departments (“unauthorized
reinsurers”) are required to provide collateral in the form
of an irrevocable letter of credit or investment securities
held in a trust account to collateralize their respective
balances due to FPIC. We have not experienced significant
credit-related losses.

Underwriting Risk is the risk that actual ultimate loss-
es are higher than the losses we estimated in our deci-
sions regarding pricing and selecting of insured risks.
Such criteria are generally based upon the expected loss
experience for particular types, classes and geographic
locations of the insured risks. Unlike other businesses, we
must price and sell our insurance policies before the actu-
al loss costs associated with those policies are known.
Therefore, to the extent the actual insurance-related
results of an insurer, before consideration of investment
income, fail to correspond with the related pricing and/or
selection criteria, an underwriting gain or loss occurs.

Market Risk is the risk that a change in interest rates
will cause a decrease in the value of FPIC's investments.
To the extent that liabilities come due more quickly than
assets mature, we would have to sell assets prior to matu-
rity and recognize a gain or loss.

NOTE 2
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION. The accompanying consol-
idated financial statements have been prepared in con-
formity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America {(“GAAP"). These financial
statements include the accounts of FPIC and all of our
wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries. Certain
other entities in which FPIC has a significant investment
are reported on the equity basis. Intercompany transac-
tions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

USE OF ESTIMATES. Management is responsible for
making estimates in the preparation of FPIC’s financial
statements. These estimates affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. The estimates most susceptible to
change are those used in determining the liability for loss-
es and loss adjustment expenses ("LAE"). Although these
estimates can vary, we believe that the liability for losses
and LAE is adequate. However, there can be no assurance
that the estimated amounts will not differ from actual
results.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. For purposes of the
consolidated statements of cash flows, FPIC considers
cash equivalents to include all demand deposits,
overnight investments and instruments with a maturity of
three months or less.

INVESTMENTS. We account for our investments in debt
and equity securities under Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard No. (“FAS”) 115, "Accounting for
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” Under
the provisions of FAS 115, FPIC is required to classify
investments in debt and equity securities into one of three
categories: held-to-maturity, available-for-sale or trading.
All of our investments in debt and marketable equity
securities are classified as available-for-sale on the con-
solidated statements of financial position, with the

I%



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrnuen)

Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts and elsewhere as noted

change in fair value during the period excluded from earn-
ings and recorded net of tax as a component of other com-
prehensive income.

Market values for debt and marketable equity securities
were based on quoted market prices. Other invested assets
include investments in two limited partnerships. One of
these partnerships invests in stocks and other financial
securities of both publicly and non-publicly traded com-
panies, primarily in the insurance and financial services
industries. The other partnership is a diversified real
estate fund. FPIC also has a private equity investment in
one corporation. The carrying values for these investments
approximate their fair values.

In addition, FPIC has non-controlling interests in a cor-
poration and another limited partnership, which are
accounted for under the equity method of accounting due
to the significance of FPIC's investment.

Income on investments includes the amortization of
premium and accretion of discount on the yield-to-matu-
rity method relating to debt securities acquired at other
than par value. Realized investment gains and losses are
determined on the basis of specific identification.
Declines in the fair value of securities considered to be
other than temporary, if any, would be recorded as real-
ized losses in the consolidated statements of income. As of
December 31, 2002, we did not hold any investment secu-
rities that were deemed to be other than temporarily
impaired.

Real estate investments consist of a building, condo-
minium units and developed land. These investments are
carried at cost less
Depreciation is computed over the estimated useful lives

accumulated depreciation.

of the property (exclusive of land, which is non-deprecia-
ble), using the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives
range from twenty-seven to thirty-nine years. Rental
income and expenses are included in net investment
income. .

We periodically review our real estate investments for
impairment and assess whether significant events or
changes in business circumstances indicate that the car-
rying value of the assets may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds the anticipated future undiscounted
cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and
its eventual disposition. The amount of the impairment
loss to be recorded, if any, is calculated by the excess of
the assets carrying value over its fair value.

REINSURANCE. We record our reinsurance contracts
under the provisions of FAS 113, “Accounting and
Reporting for Reinsurance on Short-Duration and Long-
Duration Contracts.” Net premiums written, net premi-
ums earned, losses and LAE and underwriting expenses
are reported net of the amounts related to reinsurance
ceded to other companies. Amounts recoverable from rein-
surers related to the portions of the liability for losses and
LAE and unearned premiums ceded to them are reported
as assets. Reinsurance assumed from other companies
including assumed premiums written and earned, losses
and LAE and underwriting expenses (principally ceding
commissions) is accounted for in the same manner as
direct insurance written.

Reinsurance recoverables include balances due from
reinsurance companies for paid and unpaid losses and
LAE that will be recovered from reinsurers, based on con-
tracts in force. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are
estimated in a manner consistent with the claim liability
associated with the reinsured policy. Reinsurance con-
tracts do not relieve FPIC from our primary obligations to
policyholders. Failure of reinsurers to honor their obliga-
tions could result in losses to FPIC. We evaluate the finan-
cial condition of our reinsurers and monitor concentra-
tions of credit risk with respect to the individual reinsur-
er that participates in our ceded programs to minimize
our exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insol-
vencies. We hold collateral in the form of letters of credit
or trust accounts for amounts recoverable from reinsurers
that are not designated as authorized reinsurers by the
domiciliary Departments of Insurance.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT. The cost of property
and equipment is depreciated over the estimated useful
lives of the related assets ranging from three to fifteen
years. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis.
Leasehold improvements are stated at cost less accumu-
lated amortization and amortized over the shorter of the
useful life or the term of the lease.-Gains and losses upon
asset disposal are taken into income in the year of dispo-
sition.

We periodically review our property and equipment for
impairment and assess whether significant events or
changes in business circumstances indicate that the car-
rying value of the assets may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds the anticipated future undiscounted
cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and




its eventual disposition. The amount of the impairment
loss to be recorded, if any, is calculated by the excess of
the assets carrying value over its fair value.

DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS.
Deferred policy acquisition costs consist primarily of
commissions and premium taxes that are related to the
production of new and renewal insurance business.
Acquisition costs are deferred and amortized over the
period in which the related premium is earned. Deferred
policy acquisition costs are reviewed to determine if they
are recoverable from future income, including investment
income. If such costs are estimated to be unrecoverable,
they are expensed. Commissions and brokerage fee
expenses incurred by FPIC’s non-insurance businesses are
expensed as incurred.

INCOME TAXES. FPIC accounts for income taxes in
accordance with FAS 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes.”
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
future tax consequences attributable to temporary differ-
ences between the financial statement carrying amounts
of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases and operating loss and tax credit carry forwards.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in
the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred
tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recog-
nized in income in the period that includes the enactment
date. A valuation allowance against deferred tax assets is
recorded if it is more likely than not that all or some por-
tion of the benefits related to the deferred tax assets will
not be realized. We have not established a valuation
allowance because we believe it is more likely than not
that our deferred tax assets will be fully realized.

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS. FPIC has
made acquisitions in the past that have included goodwill
and other intangible assets. Under accounting principles
in effect through December 31, 2001, these assets were
amortized as expense over their estimated useful lives.
They were also tested periodically to determine if they
were recoverable from operating earnings on an undis-
counted basis.

Effective January 1, 2002, we adopted FAS 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” In accordance
with FAS 142, goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible
assets are no longer amortized. Instead, they are subject to

an annual (or under certain circumstances more frequent)
impairment test based on their estimated fair value. Other
intangible assets that meet certain criteria continue to be
amortized over their useful lives and are also subject to an
impairment test based on estimated fair value. We com-
pleted the transitional impairment analysis required by
FAS 142 during the first quarter 2002 and recorded an
impairment charge of $29.6 million, net of an $18.8 million
income tax benefit, as the cumulative effect of accounting
change. There are many assumptions and estimates
underlying the determination of an impairment loss.
Another estimate using different, but still reasonable,
assumptions could produce a significantly different
result. Therefore, additional impairment losses could be
recorded in the future.

See Notes 10 and 11 for a discussion of goodwill and
intangible assets.

REVENUE RECOGNITION. Premiums are earned and

recognized as revenues on a monthly pro rata basis over

the terms of our insurance policies. Policy terms do not
exceed one year. Unearned premiums represent the por-
tion of written premiums that remain to be earned in
future periods. Premiums received in advance of the pol-
icy year are recorded as premiums collected in advance in
the consolidated statements of financial position. Claims
administration and management fee income is comprised
of revenues from the reciprocal management and TPA seg-
ments. Management fees of the reciprocal management
segment, determined as a percentage of PRI's premiums,
are recognized as billed and earned under the contract,
which generally corresponds with the reported premiums
written of PRI, net of an estimate for premium refunds, for
the calendar year. Such management fees are estimated,
billed and earned for quarterly reporting purposes based
upon semi-annual estimates of the reported premiums
written by PRI rather than actual written premiums for a
quarter, which may vary significantly from quarter to
quarter. This convention is used so that management fees
are recognized more ratably over the period in relation to
the services provided by the reciprocal management seg-
ment to PRI Claims administration and management fees
of the TPA segment are subject to contractual arrange-
ments, some of which exceed one year. These revenues are
recognized as earned and billed under the terms of these
contracts, which generally correspond with the provision
of services to customers.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS connmuen)

Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts and elsewhere as noted

Commission income for both non-insurance segments is
associated with the placement of reinsurance with out-
side reinsurers on behalf of PRI, various TPA customers
and in some cases, FPIC, where commissions or brokerage
fees related to a transaction are payable by the reinsurer.
Commissions and brokerage fees are recognized as rev-
enues at the later of the billing or the effective date as
there is not an obligation to perform any services after
that date.

LOSSES AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES. The
liability for losses and LAE is based upon our best esti-
mate of the ultimate cost of settling the claims (including
the effects of inflation and other societal and economic
factors). The estimated costs of settling claims is general-
ly based upon past experience adjusted for current trends,
and any other factors that would modify past experience.
These liabilities are not discounted.

We use various actuarial techniques to estimate the lia-
bility for losses and LAE, including losses that have been
incurred but not reported to us (“IBNR"), where applica-
ble. These techniques generally consist of statistical
analysis of historical experience and are commonly
referred to as loss reserve projections. Our estimation
process is generally performed by line of business, group-
ing contracts with like characteristics and policy provi-
sions. Our decisions to use particular projection methods
and the results obtained from those methods are evaluat-
ed by considering the inherent assumptions underlying
the methods and the appropriateness of those assump-
tions to the circumstances. No single projection method is
inherently better than any other in all circumstances. We
generally apply multiple methods in determining our
actuarial estimates.

Because the ultimate settlement of claims (including
IBNR reserves) is sukject to future events, no single claim
or loss and loss adjustment expense reserve can be con-
sidered accurate with certainty. Our analysis of the rea-
sonableness of loss and LAE reserve estimates does
include consideration of the amount of potential variabil-
ity in the estimate.

The liabilities for losses and LAE and the related esti-
mation methods are continually reviewed and revised to
reflect current conditions and trends. The resulting
adjustments are reflected in current year net income.
While management believes the liabilities for losses and
LAE are adequate to cover the ultimate liability, the actu-

al ultimate loss costs may vary from the amounts present-
ly estimated and such differences may be material.

Amounts attributable to ceded reinsurance derived in
estimating the liability for loss and LAE are reclassified
as assets in the consolidated statements of financial posi-
tion as required by FAS 113.

FPIC also has direct and assumed liabilities associated
with covered extended reporting endorsements under
claims-made MPL policy forms, which provide, at no addi-
tional charge, continuing MPL coverage for claims-made
insureds in the event of death, disability or retirement.
These liabilities, which possess elements of both loss
reserves and pension-type liabilities, are carried within
unearned premiums and are estimated using assumptions
for mortality, morbidity, retirement, interest and inflation.

PER SHARE DATA. Basic earnings per share are calcu-
lated by dividing net income by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per common share are calculated using
the combination of dilutive common share equivalents
and the weighted average number of common shares out-
standing during the period.

ACCOUNTING FOR STOCK:-BASED COMPENSATION.
FAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-based Compensation,”
requires the fair value of stock options and other stock-
based compensation issued to employees to either be rec-
ognized as compensation expense in the income state-
ment, or be disclosed as a pro-forma effect on net income
and earnings per share in the footnotes to FPIC's consoli-
dated financial statements. FPIC elected to adopt FAS 123
on a disclosure basis only and measures stock-based com-
pensation in accordance with Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. ("APB”) 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees,” using intrinsic values with appropriate
disclosures under the fair value based method as required
by FAS 123 and the new accounting pronouncement FAS
148 (see the discussion of FAS 148 as follows.)

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES. Liabilities
for loss contingencies arising from claims, assessments,
litigation, fines and penalties and other sources are
recorded when it is probable that a liability has been
incurred and the amount of the assessment and/or reme-
diation can be reasonably estimated.

INTEREST RATE SWAP. We account for our interest
rate swaps in accordance with FAS 133, “Accounting for




Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” as amend-

ed by FAS 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative
Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities.” FPIC uses
derivative financial instruments to manage market risks
related to changes in interest rates associated with its
revolving credit facility and term loan. The differential to
be paid or received as interest rates change is accrued and
recognized as an adjustment to interest expense related to
the debt. The related amount payable to or receivable from
the counter parties are included as adjustments to
accrued interest. See Note 15 for additional information
related to the interest rate swaps. FPIC does not currently
hold and has not issued any other derivative financial
instruments.

RECLASSIFICATION. Certain amounts for 2001 and
2000 have been reclassified to conform to the 2002
presentation.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS. In June
2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board {"FASB")
issued FAS 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit
or Disposal Activities.” FAS 146 addresses financial
accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or
disposal activities. It requires that the cost associated
with an exit or disposal activity be recognized when the
liability is incurred, not necessarily at the date of an enti-
ty's commitment to an exit plan. As a result, some costs
relating to the disposition may be deferred until later peri-
ods when they are incurred. The provisions of FAS 146 are
effective for exit or disposal activities initiated after
December 31, 2002. Accordingly, we will adopt this state-
ment for applicable transactions occurring on or after
January 1, 2003.

FAS 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-
Transition and Disclosure,” amends FAS 123, “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation,” to provide transition
guidance for a change to the fair value based method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In
addition, this statement amends the disclosure require-
ments of FAS 123 for both annual and interim financial
statements. FAS 148 is effective December 31, 2002. The
adoption of FAS 148 did not have a material effect on our
financial statements. The disclosure requirements of FAS
148 have been incorporated into Note 19.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation
No. (“FIN") 45, "Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Including

Guarantees, Indirect

Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” FIN 45 expands
existing accounting guidance and disclosure require-
ments for certain guarantees and requires the recognition
of a liability for the fair value of certain types of guaran-
tees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. We do not
believe that the adoption of the FIN 45's guidance will
have a material effect on our financial position.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, “Consolidation
of Variable Interest Entities.” FIN 46 addresses whether
certain types of entities, referred to as variable interest
entities (“VIEs”), should be consolidated in a company'’s
financial statements. A VIE is an entity that either (1) has
equity investors that lack certain essential characteristics
of a controlling financial interest (including the ability to
control the entity, the obligation to absorb the entity's
expected losses and the right to receive the entity's
expected residual returns), or (2) lacks sufficient equity to
finance its own activities without financial support pro-
vided by other entities, which in turn would be expected
to absorb at least some of the expected losses of the VIE.
An entity should consolidate a VIE if it stands to absorb a
majority of the VIE's expected losses or to receive a major-
ity of the VIE's expected residual returns. The provisions
of FIN 46 are effective immediately for all VIEs created
after January 31, 2003. With respect to VIEs created before
February 1, 2003, FIN 46 would become effective for pub-
lic companies no later than the beginning of the first
interim or annual period beginning after June 15, 2003
(i.e., third calendar quarter of 2003). FIN 46 also requires
that if it is reasonably possible that an enterprise will
consolidate or disclose information about a VIE when it
does become effective, that the enterprise is required to
disclose certain information about it in all financial state-
ments initially issued after January 31, 2003. We have con-
sidered the guidance contained in FIN 46 and, to date,
have not identified any interests or relationships that we
believe would be a variable interest in a VIE, as defined.

NOTE 3
BUSINESS ACRUISITIDNS

On March 22, 2000, FPIC entered into agreements {the “new
agreements”) with the sellers of McCreary and EMI to lock
in the remaining payments due under their prior respective
acquisition agreements, and thereby effectively eliminated
the contingent terms under those agreements. Under the
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new agreements, FPIC paid the sellers of McCreary $1.7
million on July 31, 2000, and agreed to pay the sellers of
EMI $227 and $538 on March 27, 2000 and March 1, 2001,
respectively. These payments increased the original pur-
chase price and the recorded goodwill, accordingly.

NOTE 4
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value estimates are made as of a specific point in time
based on the characteristics of the financial instruments
and relevant market information. Where available, quoted
market prices are used. In other cases, fair values are
based on estimates using valuation techniques, such as
discounting estimated future cash flows using a rate com-
mensurate with the risks involved or other acceptable
methods. These techniques involve uncertainties and are
significantly affected by the assumptions used and the
judgments made regarding risk characteristics of various
financial instruments, prepayments, discount rates, esti-
mates of future cash flows, future anticipated loss experi-
ence and other factors. Changes in assumptions could sig-
nificantly affect these estimates. Independent market data
may not be available to validate those fair value estimates
that are based on internal valuation techniques. Moreover,
such fair value estimates may not be indicative of the
amounts that could be realized in an immediate sale of the
instrument. Also, because of differences in methodologies
and assumptions used to estimate fair values, the fair val-
ues of FPIC's financial instruments may not be compara-
ble to those of other companies.

Fair value estimates are based on existing financial
instruments without attempting to estimate the value of
anticipated future business and the value of assets and
liabilities that are not considered financial instruments.
Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented
do not represent the underlying value of FPIC. For certain
assets and liabilities, the information required is supple-
mented with additional information relevant to an under-
standing of the fair value.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair value of each class of financial instru-
ments for which it is practicable to estimate that value:

Cash and cash equivalents - Carrying value approxi-
mates the fair value because of the short maturity of these
instruments.

Bonds and equity securities — Fair value was estimated
based on bid prices published in financial newspapers.

Other invested assets — Carrying value approximates
the fair value.

Revolving credit facility — Carrying value approximates
the fair value.

Term loan — Carrying value approximates the fair value.

Interest rate swaps - Fair value was estimated using
quotes from brokers and represents the cash requirement
if the existing agreement had been settled at year-end.

The following table presents the carrying values and
estimated fair values of FPIC's financial instruments as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001.

BECEMBER 31, 2862 DECEMBER 31, 2001

CARRYING ESTIMATED CARRYING ESTIMATED
VALUE FAIR VALUE YALUE FAIR VALUE
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 86,589 86,589 75,220 75,220
Bonds 436,970 436,970 348,949 348,949
Equity securities 6 6 8 8
Other invested assets 10,801 10,801 13,534 13,534
Total financial assets $ 534,366 534,366 437,711 437,711

Financial liabilities
Revelving credit facility $§ 37,000 37,000 37,000 37,000
Term loan 10,208 10,208 16,042 16,042
Interest rate swaps 3,383 3,383 2,943 2,943
Total financial liabilities $ 50,591 50,591 55,985 55,985




The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investments in debt and equity securities as of December 31, 2002 and

2001 were as follows:

NOTE 5
INVESTMENTS

GROSS 5ROSS
ANORTIZED GHREALIZED UNREALIZED FAIR
2002 COST GAIRS LOSSES VALUE
Bonds
Corporate securities $ 166,161 5,722 894 170,989
United States Government agencies and authorities 104,604 3,196 50 107,750
States, municipalities and political subdivisions 86,849 2,746 497 89,098
Mortgage-backed securities 67,563 1,647 77 69,133
Total bonds 425,177 13,311 1,518 436,970
Equity securities
Common stocks 7 — 1 6
Total equity securities 7 — 1 6
Total securities available-for-sale $ 425,184 13,311 1,519 436,976
2001
Bonds
Corporate securities 3 104,175 2,357 1,814 104,718
United States Government agencies and authorities 47,157 945 45 48,057
States, municipalities and political subdivisions 94,304 1,999 1,225 95,078
Mortgage-backed securities 100,488 1,693 1,085 101,096
Total bonds 346,124 6,994 4,169 348,949
Equity securities
Comimon stocks N 7 2 1 8
Total equity securities 7z 2 1 8
Total securities available-for-sale $ 346,131 6,996 4,170 348,957

1%
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value of debt
securities at December 31, 2002 by contractual maturity
are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from
contractual maturities, because borrowers have the right
to call or prepay these obligations with or without call or
prepayment penalties.

AMORTIZED FALR
COST VALLE

$ 9117 9,230

Due in one year or less
Due after one year

through five years 135,407 139,990
Due after five years

through ten years 146,243 149,010

Due after ten years 66,847 69,607

367,614 367,837

Mortgage-backed securities 67,563 69,133

$ 425,177 436,970

As of December 31, 2002, investments in securities and
cash with an amortized cost of $15,168 and a market value
of $16,646 were on deposit with the insurance depart-
ments in various states as required by law. Investments in
securities and cash with an amortized cost of $86,116 and
a market value of $88,850 were held in trust as collateral
for reinsurance assumed as required by law in various
states in which we assume insurance business.

Net investment income for the years ended December
31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was as follows:

December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Gross
losses of $4,092, $3,101 and $3 were realized on sales of
debt and equity securities for the years ended December
31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

At December 31, 2002, FPIC's other invested assets
included investments in three limited partnerships and
two private corporations. These assets were recorded at an
aggregate value of $10,801 and $11,334 at December 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively. FPIC sold its investment in
HCIF Management Company during November 2002 and
received payment in the amount $174. In December 2002,
FPIC sold its investment in Renaissance LLP and recorded
a note receivable in the amount $2,037, all of which has been
collected in 2003. In January 2001, FPIC’s investment in a
joint venture, Bexar Credentials Inc., was redeemed for $70.

NOTE §
REAL ESTATE [NYESTMENTS

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, real estate investments
consisted of the following:

2002 2001

Land and building 3 5,6*6—7*_ 5,283
Condominium units 261 2861
Other 38 38
5,966 5,582

Less: accumulated depreciation (1,612) (1,327)
Net real estate investments $ 4,354 4,255

2002 2001 20680

Bonds $ 20,714 21,722 23,310
Equity securities — 6 43
Real estate 534 772 539
Short-term investments 805 1,407 449
Other invested assets 102 (138) 1,438
Cash on hand and
on deposit 416 752 876
22,571 24,521 26,655
Less: investment expense (2,669) (1,144) (1,836)
Net investment inccome $ 19,802 23,377 24,819

Proceeds from sales and maturities of bonds were
$313,313, $221,596 and $59,373, for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Proceeds
from sales of equity securities were $566 and $966 for the
years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Gross gains of $8,769, $4,530 and $168 were realized on
sales of debt and equity securities for the years ended

Total depreciation expense on real estate investments was
$286, $256 and $256 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

MOTE 7
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, property and equipment
consisted of the following:

2002 2001

Furniture, fixtures and equipment $§ 3,333 3,133
Data processing equipment
and software 8,393 7,487
Leasehold improvements 1,351 1,203
Automobiles 251 313
13,328 12,136
Less: accumulated depreciation _(8,994)  (7,409)
Net property and equipment $ 4,334 4,727




NOTE 8
DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION £OSTS

Changes in deferred policy acquisition costs for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Beginning balance $ 9,001 5,967 2,789
Additions 6,707 12,293 8,795
Amortization expense (9,952) (9,269) (5,617)
Reductions {1,304) — —
Ending balance $ 4,452 9,001 5,967

During 2002, we recorded a charge related to our MPL
business at Intermed, as it was estimated that not all of its
deferred policy acquisition costs were recoverable. As a
result, deferred policy acquisition costs were reduced by
the amount $1,304.

The provision for income taxes differs from the
statutory corporate tax rate of 35% for 2002, 2001 and 2000
as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Computed “expected” tax
expense (benefit) $ 8,298 380 (1,040)
Municipal bond interest (1,309) (2,416) (2,851)

State income taxes,
net of Federal benefit 950 332 190

Prior year adjustments

upon IRS examination 544 — —

Other, net 351 (140} 115
Actual income tax

‘expense (benefit) $ 8,834 (1,844)  {3,586)

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the significant compo-
nents of the net deferred tax asset were as follows:

2002 2001
NOTE 9 Deferred tax assets arising from:

INCOME TAXES Goodwill $ 15,231 -
Loss reserve discounting 9,399 11,775
FPIC's provision for income taxes for 2002, 2001 and 2000 Unearned premium reserves 9,044 11,719
consisted of the following: Net operating loss carry forward 2,221 925
Deferred ceding commission 1,801 —
2002 2001 2000 Unrealized losses on securities 2,069 341

Current expense (benefit) Benefit plans 1,188 521
Federal $ 6605 (1,205  (936) Other 125t 64
State 1,385 334 626 Total deferred tax assets 42,204 25345

Total 7,990 (871) (310) Deferred tax liabilities arising from:

Deferred expense (benefit) Unrealized gains on securities 4,413 —
Federal 767 {1,149) (2,943) Deferred policy acquisition costs 2,626 3,630
State 77 176 (333) Goodwill —  15x

Other 512 337
Total 844 (973) (3,276)
- - Total deferred tax liabilities 7,551 5,401

Net income tax expense
(benefit) $ 8,834 (1,844)  (3,586) Net deferred tax asset $ 34,653 19,944

Net deferred tax assets and Federal income tax expense
in future years can be significantly affected by changes in
enacted tax rates or by unexpected adverse events that
would influence management’s conclusions as to the ulti-
mate realizability of deferred tax assets.
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During 2002, FPIC concluded examinations by the
Internal Revenue Service ("IRS"} of its consolidated
Federal income tax returns for the years ended December
31,1998 and 1999. As a result of these examinations, a net
additional provision for income taxes was recognized in
the amount of $554. FPIC is scheduled to undergo an IRS
examination of its Federal income tax returns for the
years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001, beginning in
April of 2003. Based on the results of our recently com-
pleted IRS examinations, we believe that our income tax
returns are correct and in compliance with applicable tax
laws in all material respects. However, there can be no
assurance that additional tax adjustments and related
penalties and interest will not be proposed and incurred
as a result of an IRS examination.

WOTE 10
GOODWILL

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for
the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 are
as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Beginning balance $ 67,232 70,754 71,851
Additions at cost — — 2,557
Reductions at cost — — (46)
Transitional impairment

charge under FAS 142 (48,362) — —
Amortization expense — (3,522) (3,608}
Ending balance $ 18,870 67,232 70,754

FPIC adopted FAS 142 effective January 1, 2002. In con-
nection with the adoption, in the first quarter of 2002,
FPIC discontinued the amortization of goodwill and
engaged independent valuation consultants to perform
transitional impairment tests at each of its operating

segments: insurance, reciprocal management and TPA.

These operating segments meet the reporting unit require-

ments as defined by FAS 142.

The fair values for each of the reporting units were cal-
culated using one or more of the following approaches: (i)
market multiple approach; (ii) discounted cash flow
{(“DCF") approach; and/or (iii) asset approach.

o Under the market multiple approach, the values of the
reporting units were based on the market prices and
performance fundamentals of similar public compa-
nies.

+ Under the DCF approach, the values of the reporting
units were based on the present value of the projected
future cash flows to be generated. ’

» Under the asset approach, the value of a reporting unit
is the difference in the fair value of total assets and the
fair value of total liabilities. The fair value of each asset
and liability may in turn be estimated using an income
approach, market approach or cost approach.

Based on the results of the impairment tests, goodwill
was not deemed to be impaired at the insurance segment,
since the fair value of the reporting unit exceeded its car-
rying value. Therefore, the second step of the goodwill
impairment test was not performed. However, the carrying
values of the reciprocal management and TPA segments
exceeded their respective fair values, indicating a poten-
tial impairment of goodwill, Under step 2 of the test, the
implied fair values of the reciprocal management and TPA
goodwill were compared to their carrying values to meas-
ure the amount of impairment loss. As a result, a non-cash
transitional impairment charge of $48,362 ($29,578, net of
an income tax benefit of $18,784) was recognized and
recorded as a cumulative effect of accounting change in
the accompanying consolidated statements of income for
the year ended December 31, 2002. The results of the tran-
sitional impairment tests and charges were as follows:

RECIPROCAL THIRD-PARTY

Balance as of December 31, 2001
Impairment charge

Balance as of December 31, 2002

{HSURANCE FTANAGERIENT ADRIMISTRATION TOTAL

$ 10,833 49,140 7,259 67,232
- o - (41,103) (7,259) (48,362)

$ 10,833 8,037 — 18,870




The transitional impairment charge at the reciprocal
management segment primarily reflects certain intangi-
bles and synergies, which, in our opinion, are opportunis-
tic in nature and carry a relatively significant degree of
uncertainty; therefore, we treated these intangibles
conservatively in the valuation required by FAS 142. The
transitional impairment charge at the TPA segment

primarily reflects changes in market conditions and an
increase in competition in recent years in the markets
served by FPIC's TPA segment. The following table pro-
vides comparative disclosures of net income excluding the
cumulative effect of accounting change and goodwill
amortization, net of taxes, for 2002, 2001 and 2000.

2002 2001 2000
Net (loss) income:
Net (loss) income, as reported ${(14,702) 2,930 614
Cumulative effect of accounting change 29,578 — —
Net income, adjusted 14,876 2,930 614
Goodwill amortization, net of tax — 2,157 2,157
Net income, comparative $ 14,876 5,087 2,771
Basic (loss) earnings per common share:
Net (loss) income, as reported $ (1.57) 0.31 0.06
Cumulative effect of accounting change 3.15 — —
Net income, adjusted 1.58 0.31 0.06
Goodwill amortization, net of tax = 0.23 0.23
Net income, comparative $ 158 0.54 0.29
Diluted floss) earnings per common share:
Net (loss) income, as reported $ (1.56) 0.31 0.06
Cumulative effect of accounting change 3.14 —_ —
Net income, adjusted 1.58 0.31 0.06
Goodwill amortization, net of tax = 0.23 0.23
Net income, comparative $ 158 0.54 0.29

MOTE 11
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, identifiable
intangibles consisted of the following:

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2002

AS OF JECEMBER 31, 2001 As OF DECECIBER 31, 2000

ACCYUZIULATED -

GROSS ACCUNMULATED GROSS GROSS ACCURIULATED
BALANCE ARIORTIZATION BALARCE REIORTIZATION BALANICE ANGRTIZATION
Trade secrets o $ 1,500 675 1,500 T 525 1,500 375
Non-compete agreements 500 321 500 250 500 179
Other 305 275 305 21% i 305_ 152
Total $ 2,305 1,271 2,305 988 2,305 706
Aggregate amortization expense:
2000 3 282
2001 $ 282
2002 3 283
Estimated amortization expense:
2003 $ 252
2004 3 221
2005 3 186
2006 $ 150
2007 3 150
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NOTE 12
LIABILITY FOR LOSSES AND LAE

Activity in the liability for loss and LAE for the vears
ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000 was as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Gross balance, January 1 $318,483 281,295 273,092
Less reinsurance
recoverables 80,410 57,698 58,400
Net balance, January 1 238,073 223,697 214,692
Incurred related to:
Current year 137,155 119,734 116,246
Prior years 2,416 8,612 6,520
Total incurred 139,671 128,346 122,766
Paid related to:
Current year 9,130 17,980 22,592
Prior years 96,507 95,890 91,269
Total paid 105,637 113,870 113,861
Net balance, December 31 272,007 238,073 223,597
Plus reinsurance
recoverables 168,159 80,410 57,698
Gross balance,
December 31 $ 440,166 318,483 281,295

Incurred losses and LAE for claims related to prior
years represent the changes in estimates charged or cred-
ited to earnings in the current year with respect to the lia-
bilities that originated and were established in prior
years. Information regarding incurred losses and LAE is
accumulated over time and the estimates of the liability
are revised accordingly, resulting in gains or losses in the
period revisions are made.

In the year 2000, most of the prior years reserve
increase occurred on claims reported to us in 1997 and
1998. We made this increase primarily because upon re-
estimation we determined that severity (the average cost
of a claim) had increased more than we expected. We also
increased reserves on other lines of business at First

Professionals in 2000, including its now discontinued
accident and health line and its assumed reinsurance. The
upward development on prior years’ reserves in 2001
included some increase in the initial estimate for 2000
MPL losses and LAE. In addition and while most claims
and incidents reported are closed without a loss payment,
we also raised our estimates relative to the ratio of claims
closed with a loss payment to all claims and incidents
closed in 2000 and 2001.

MOTE 13
REINSURANGCE

FPIC cedes certain premiums and losses to other insur-
ance and reinsurance carriers under various reinsurance
agreements and fronting programs. FPIC's reinsurance
agreements do not relieve FPIC from its obligations as pri-
mary insurer to its policyholders. To the extent that any
reinsurer might be unable to meet its obligations, FPIC
would nonetheless continue to be liable to its policyhold-
ers for the insured losses and LAE.

In 2002, FPIC reinsured under its main excess of loss
program losses incurred in excess of $500 (retention on
FPIC's anesthesiology programs was $375 per loss
because 25% of that business is already ceded to American
Professional Assurance Ltd. (“APAL"), a Cayman Island
insurance company of which FPIC owns 9.9%). In 2000
and 2001, we reinsured losses incurred under this pro-
gram in excess of $250 (retention on FPIC's anesthesiolo-
gy programs was $187 per loss because of the program
between FPIC and APAL). The 2001 and 2000 programs
included an annual aggregate deductible. In 2001, FPIC's
annual aggregate deductible was 10.73% of subject writ-
ten premium or approximately $12.9 million. In 2000,
FPIC's annual aggregate deductible was $9.0 million.

The effect of reinsurance on premiums written and
earned for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000, was as follows:

2002 2001 2000

WRITTER EARKED WRITTEN EARNED WRITTEN EARMED

Direct and assumed $ 344,727 318,068 245,403 198,691 197,280 163,977
Ceded (204,479) (166,384) (98,319) (67,633) (35,349) (33,523)
Net 3 140,248 151,684 147,084 131,058 161,931 120,454




Effective July 1, 2002, our largest insurance subsidiary,
First Professionals, entered into a finite reinsurance
agreement with two insurance companies of the Hannover
Re group (“Hannover Re"). The agreement, which calls for
First Professionals to cede quota share portions of its
2002 and 2003 written premiums, contains adjustable fea-
tures, including a loss corridor, sliding scale ceding com-
missions and a cap on the amount of losses that may be
ceded to the reinsurer. The effect of these features is to
limit the reinsurers’ aggregate exposure to loss and there-
by reduce the ultimate cost to First Professionals as the
ceding company. These features also have the effect of
reducing the amount of protection relative to the quota
share amount of premiums ceded by First Professionals.
While First Professionals does not receive pro-rata protec-
tion relative to the amount of premiums ceded, the
amount of such protection is significant, as determined in
accordance with guidance under both statutory account-
ing practices and GAAP. In addition to ceding a significant
portion of its risks to Hannover Re, the agreement also
allows First Professionals to reduce its financial leverage
and to realize immediate reimbursement for related up-
front acquisition costs, thus adding to its financial capac-
ity. The following table illustrates the pro-forma effects of
the agreement on selected consolidated financial informa-
tion of our insurance subsidiaries.

PRO-FORTIA
(“NON-GAAP™)
ARBUNTS EXCLUDING
THE EFFECTS OF THE
REINSURANCE
AGREEMERT
TWELVE [MONTHS ENDED TWELVE MONTHS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2002 ODECEMBER 31, 2082

Net premiums written $ 140,248 $ 225,779
Net premiums earned $ 151,684 $ 199,863
Loss and LAE incurred $139,571 $ 178,596
Income before income taxes

and cumulative effect of

accounting change $ 23,710 $ 21172
Consolidated statutory

surplus $ 125,470 $ 120,698
Ratio of net premiums written

to consolidated statutory

surplus 1.1:1 1.9:1

First Professionals has the option to commute the
agreement should the business perform such that the
underlying protection proves to be unnecessary, in which
case the reinsurance would cease, the underlying reinsur-
ance assets and liabilities would unwind, and any net
funds under the agreement, less a 4.2% risk charge to the

reinsurers, would be retained by First Professionals. The
decision of whether to commute the agreement and the
timing of any such commutation will depend on the per-
formance of the underlying business, the need for the
agreement based on our capital position and other rele-
vant considerations.

At December 31, 2002, three Hannover Re group compa-
nies and two other reinsurers accounted for approximate-
ly $138.7 million, or 63%, of our total reinsurance recover-
ables and ceded unearned premiums. The Hannover Re
companies are authorized reinsurers, so we do not main-
tain collateral on their recoverable balances. At December
31, 2002, we withheld funds under the terms of the finite
reinsurance agreement with Hannover Re in the amount
of $60.9 million, and held collateral in the form of irrevo-
cable letters of credit or assets held in trust for the rein-
surance recoverables due from the other two reinsurers in
the aggregate amount of $52.0 million. At December 31,
2001, $48.9 million of our total reinsurance recoverables
were due from three reinsurers, of which irrevocable let-
ters of credit or assets held in trust collateralized $34.4
million.

On August 2, 2002, Gerling Global Reinsurance
Corporation of America (“Gerling”), one of our reinsurers,
had its financial strength rating lowered by AM. Best
from A- (Excellent) to B+ (Very Good). On December 20,
2002, Gerling's A.M. Best rating was further downgraded
to B- (Fair). These rating actions by A.M. Best followed an
announcement by Gerling of its intention to exit the U.S.
non-life reinsurance market. Since then, Gerling has
essentially placed itself in voluntary run-off with respect
to its U.S. non-life reinsurance business and A.M. Best has
withdrawn Gerling's financial strength rating and
replaced it with the designation “NR-3,” which means that
A.M. Best's rating methodology no longer applies. Gerling
has participated in our excess of loss reinsurance pro-
grams in 2000 at 15%, and in 2001 and 2002 at 20%.
Gerling has also provided facultative reinsurance cover-
age for non-standard risks. We replaced Gerling’s partici-
pation in our reinsurance programs, effective with our
renewal, as of January 1, 2003. As of December 31, 2002,
the estimated amount of net reinsurance recoverables
from Gerling was approximately $13 million, comprised of
the gross recoverables from Gerling, less reinsurance
payables to Gerling of approximately $4 million. Gerling is
an authorized reinsurer in our markets; therefore, we do
not hold collateral for these reinsurance recoverables.
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Gerling’s actions, including placing itself in run-off
with respect to its U.S. non-life reinsurance business, have
been voluntary and as recently as March 10, 2003, it has
publicly stated that it is paying its outstanding claims.
Consequently, we currently expect that Gerling will fully
meet its obligations to us. We will continue to monitor
developments at Gerling and should its financial condi-
tion worsen, we could, in-turn, recognize a charge for
uncollectible reinsurance recoverables.

HOTE 14
BORROWING ARRANGEMENTS

On August 31, 2001, FPIC entered into a Revolving Credit
and Term Loan Agreement (the “credit facility”} with five
financial institutions. The initial aggregate principal
amount of the credit facility was $55 million, including ()
a $37.5 million revolving credit facility {(with a $15 million
letter of credit sub-facility), which matures on August 31,
2004, and which FPIC has the right to increase up to $47.5
million by securing additional lenders to participate in
the facility; and (ii) a $17.5 million term loan facility,
repayable in twelve equal quarterly installments of
approximately $1.5 million that commenced on December
31, 2001.

Amounts outstanding under the credit facility bear
interest at a variable rate, primarily based upon LIBOR
plus a current margin of 3.00 percentage points, which
may be reduced to a minimum of 2.75 percentage points as
FPIC reduces its outstanding indebtedness. The credit
facility replaced a $75 million revolving credit facility (the
“prior facility”) that was scheduled to have matured on
January 4, 2002. Approximately $67.2 million of principal
was outstanding under the prior facility at the time of
refinancing. FPIC used available funds to pay down the
difference between the outstanding principal amount of
the prior facility and the initial amount of the new facili-
ty. We have also deposited $3.0 million (of which, $1.0 mil-
lion was deposited in January 2003} as collateral under
the terms of the credit facility, and are required to either
pre-pay principal or make additional collateral deposits
of $0.35 million quarterly in 2003. The credit facility also
requires that we pre-pay principal or make additional col-
lateral deposits of approximately $1.3 million each at
March 31 and June 30, 2004. As of December 31, 2002 and
2001, the interest rates on FPIC's credit facilities were

6.25% (as of January 2, 2003, the interest rate was 4.38%)
and 4.16%, respectively. FPIC is not required to maintain

-compensating balances in connection with these credit

facilities but is charged a fee on the unused portion, which
ranges from 30 to 40 basis points.

Under the terms of the credit facility, we are required to
meet certain financial and non-financial covenants.
Significant covenants are as follows: (i) total debt to cash
flow available for debt service may not exceed 3.00:1; (ii)
combined net premiums written to combined statutory
capital and surplus may not exceed 1.75:1; (iii) funded
debt to total capital plus funded debt may not exceed
0.27:1; (iv) the fixed charge coverage ratio may not be less-
than 2.00:1 at the end of each quarter through December
31, 2002, and thereafter the fixed charge coverage ratio
may not be less than 2.25:1; and (v) combined gross premi-
ums written to combined statutory capital and surplus
may not exceed 2.75:1.

The credit facility also contains minimum equity and
risk-based capital requirements and requires our insur-
ance subsidiary, First Professionals, to maintain at least a
B++ (Very Good) group rating from A.M. Best.

Should FPIC fail to meet one or more of its loan
covenants, such occurrence would be considered an event
of defauit. In the event FPIC was unable to provide an
acceptable resolution for such event of default, FPIC's
lenders would be entitled to certain remedies, including
the right to demand immediate repayment, including pay-
ment in full. Were FPIC's lenders to demand immediate
payment in full, FPIC could not make such payment from
existing funds and would have to seek replacement
financing or take other steps to raise the required funds.
Under such circumstances, FPIC's ability to secure such
replacement financing could not be assured, and if
obtained, such financing would likely carry higher costs.

NGTE 15
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In connection with FPIC's credit facility entered into on
August 31, 2001, FPIC replaced its interest rate swaps (the
“previous swaps"). In accordance with the accounting pre-
scribed by FAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative Financial
Instruments,” FPIC recorded an unrealized loss associated
with the fair value of the previous swaps upon their
replacement, which is included in accumulated other com-




prehensive income {loss) as a component of shareholders’
equity. The unrealized loss is being amortized into income
over the term of the previous swaps, which would have
expired January 2, 2004.

FPIC uses inferest rate swap agreements {the “swap
agreements”) to minimize fluctuations in cash flows
caused by interest rate volatility and to effectively convert
all of its floating-rate debt to fixed-rate debt. Such agree-
ments involve the exchange of fixed and floating interest
rate payments over the life of the agreement without the
exchange of the underlying principal
Accordingly, the impact of fluctuations in interest rates on
these swap agreements is offset by the opposite impact on
the related debt. Amounts to be paid or received under the
swap agreements are recognized as increases or reduc-
tiops in interest expense in the periods in which they
accrue. We believe that the counterparties to the swap
agreements are creditworthy.

The swap agreements in effect at December 31, 2002 are
as follows:

amounts.

HOTIBHAL ATOUNT ATURITIES RECELVE RATE™  PAY RATE
$37,000 08/31/2004 1.40% 6.45%
$10,208 08/31/2004 1.40% 5.97%

(1) Based on three-month LIBOR

The following is a summary of FPIC’s interest risk man-
agement strategy and the effect of this strategy on FPIC's
consolidated financial statements:

Under the swap agreements, FPIC agrees to pay an
amount equal to a specified fixed-rate of interest times a
notional principal amount and to receive in return an
amount equal to a specified variable-rate of interest times
the same notional principal amount. The notional
amounts on the contract are not exchanged. No other cash
payments are made unless the contract is terminated
prior to maturity, in which case the amount paid or
received in settlement is established by agreement at the
time of termination, and usually represents the net pres-
ent value, at current interest rates, of the remaining obli-
gations to exchange payments under the terms of the con-
tract.

FPIC's swap agreements provide a hedge against
changes in the amount of cash flows associated with
FPIC’s revolving credit facility and term loan. Accordingly,

the swap agreements are reflected at fair value in FPIC's
consolidated statements of financial position and the
effective portion of the related gains or losses on the
agreements are recognized in shareholders’ equity (as.a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss). The net effect of this accounting on FPIC's operating
results is that interest expense on the variable debt being
hedged is recorded based on fixed interest rates.

FPIC formally documents the relationships between the
hedging instruments and the revolving credit facility and
term loan. FPIC also assesses the effectiveness of the
hedging instruments on a quarterly basis. If it is deter-
mined that the hedging instruments are no longer highly
effective, the change in the fair value of the ineffective
portion of the swaps would be included in earnings rather
than comprehensive income. For the year ended December
31, 2002, the net gain or loss on the ineffective portion of
the swap agreements was not material.

MDTE 16
DEFERRED CREDIT

At December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, FPIC's deferred
credit consisted of the following:

2082 2001 2000
Beginning balance $ 10,007 11,484 —
Deferred credit — — 13,205
Amortization expense (1,258} (1,477) (1,721)
Ending balance $ 8,749 10,007 11,484

Effective January 1, 2000, FPIC's insurance subsidiaries
entered into a 100% quota share reinsurance agreement
with PRI to assume the death, disability and retirement
(“DD&R") risks under PRI's claims-made insurance poli-
cies in exchange for cash and investments. FPIC complet-
ed a GAAP valuation of the underlying liability during
2000 and a deferred credit in the amount of $13,205 was
recognized. The deferred credit, which will be accreted
into income over 20 years, represents the difference
between the GAAP valuation of the underlying liabilities
and the initial premium received. The liability was calcu-
lated using benefit assumptions and elements of pension
actuarial models (i.e., mortality, morbidity, retirement,
interest and inflation rate assumptions).

PAGE
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NGTE 17
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The future minimum annual rentals under non-cancelable
operating leases are as follows:

2003 $ 2,695
2004 2,717
2005 2,657
2006 2,190
2007 1,962
Thereafter 3,659
Total $ 15,780

Total rental expense was $2,581, $2,410, and $2,190 for
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

FPIC’s insurance subsidiaries from time to time become
subject to claims for extra-contractual obligations or risks
in excess of policy limits in connection with their insur-
ance claims. These claims are sometimes referred to as
“bad faith” actions as it is alleged that the insurance com-
pany acted in bad faith in the administration of a claim
against an insured. Bad faith actions are infrequent and
generally occur in instances where a jury verdict exceeds
the insured’s policy limits. Under such circumstances, it is
routinely alleged that the insurance company failed to
negotiate a settlement of a claim in good faith within the
insured’s policy limit. FPIC has evaluated such exposures
as of December 31, 2002, and believes its position and
defenses are meritorious. However, there can be no
absolute assurance as to the outcome of such exposures.
FPIC currently maintains insurance for such occurrences,
which serves to limit exposure to such claims. However, in
one such case, arising in 1993, no such coverage is avail-
able and an estimate of possible loss currently cannot be

made. In addition, multiple claims for extra contractual
obligations in a single year could result in potential expo-
sures materially in excess of insurance coverage or in
increased costs of insurance coverage.

FPIC may also become involved in legal actions not
involving claims under its insurance policies from time to
time. FPIC has evaluated such exposures as of December
31,2002, and in all cases, believes its position and defens-
es are meritorious. However, there can be no absolute
assurance as to the outcome of such exposures.

FPIC's insurance subsidiaries are subject to assessment
by the financial guaranty associations in the states in
which they conduct business for the provision of funds
necessary for the settlement of covered claims under cer-
tain policies of insolvent insurers. Generally, these associ-
ations can assess member insurers on the basis of written
premiums in their particular states.

In addition to standard assessments, the Florida and
Missouri Legislatures may also levy special assessments
to settle claims caused by certain catastrophic losses.
FPIC would be assessed on the basis of premiums written
in the state. During 2001, a special assessment was levied
on First Professionals and APAC that totaled $0.9 million.
No special assessments were made in 2002 and 2000. In
addition, FPIC could be subject to additional assessments
in the future as a result of damages caused by catastroph-
ic losses, such as a hurricane.

While management has evaluated the incidents and cir-
cumstances surrounding the above-mentioned asserted or
unasserted legal claims and assessments of which it is
aware and believes that these will not have materially
adverse effects on FPIC beyond amounts already recog-
nized and accrued, there can be no absolute assurance as
to their ultimate outcomes.




NOTE 18
RECOMCILIATION OF BASIC AND-
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Data with respect to FPIC's basic and diluted earnings per
common share are shown below:

2002 2001 2000

Net income (loss):
Income before cumulative

effect of accounting change $ 14,876 2,930 614
Cumulative effect of

accounting change (29,578) — —
Net {loss) income $(14,702) 2,930 614
Basic earnings {loss) per

common share:
Income before cumulative

effect of accounting change $ 1.58 0.31 0.06
Cumulative effect of

accounting change (3.15) — —
Net (loss) income 3 {1.57) 0.31 0.06

Diluted earnings (loss) per
common share:

Income before cumulative
effect of accounting change $ 1.58 0.31 0.06

Cumulative effect of

accounting change (3.14) — —
Net {loss) income $ (1.56) 0.31 0.06
Basic weighted average

shares outstanding 9,387 9,383 9,497
Common stock equivalents 45 85 74
Diluted weighted average

shares outstanding 9,432 9,468 9,571

Diluted loss per common share for the three months
ended December 31, 2001 is based only on the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during the
period, as the inclusion of 115 common stock equivalents
would have been anti-dilutive.

NOTE 18
STGCH OPTION PLANS

FPIC has a stock option plan for officers and key employ-
ees (the “employee plan”) and a plan for non-employee
directors (the “director plan”). Under the director plan,
only non-qualified stock options may be issued. Under the
employee plan, both incentive stock options and non-qual-
ified stock options may be granted to the same individual.
The option price of an incentive stock option may not be
less than 100% of the fair market value of shares on the
grant date. The option price of a non-qualified option may
not be less than 50% of the fair market value of shares on
the grant date. Under the terms of the director plan, 5,000
shares are granted to each director on the date that per-
son becomes a director and on an annual basis as
approved by the Board. The plan also provides for discre-
tionary grants at future dates as approved by the Board.
Stock grants made under the director plan are at a price
not less than 100% of the fair market value of the underly-
ing stock on the grant date.

During 2000, FPIC offered a stock purchase incentive
program (the “incentive plan”) to eligible employees,
including executive officers. Under the incentive plan,
employees who purchased shares of FPIC's common stock
in the open market during the term of the incentive plan
were granted matching nonqualified stock options on a
one-for-one basis, up to the maximum of 5,000 options per
employee. The incentive plan began January 2000 and
ended April 2000. Option grants under the incentive plan
were made as of May 1, 2000 at an exercise price equal to
the closing market price of FPIC's common stock on that
date. Options granted under the incentive plan vest in
three equal annual installments commencing on the one-
year anniversary of their grant. Options under this plan
were granted under the employee plan.

FPIC also maintains an Employee Stock Purchase Plan
that allows employees to purchase FPIC’s common stock
at 85% of the market value on the first or last day of the
offering period, whichever is lower. At December 31, 2002
and 2001, 11,279 and 36,032 shares of FPIC's common
stock were reserved for issuance in connection with
this plan.
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At December 31, 2002 and 2001, 558,641 and 483,250 shares of FPIC's common stock were reserved for issuance in
connection with the stock option plans, respectively. A summary of the status of FPIC's stock options is
presented below:

CIEIGRTED- YEIGNTED-
AYERAGE AYERAGE
SHARES EXEREISE PRICE CRERCISABLE CHERGIST PRICE

Balance, December 31, 1999 1,359,236 $ 21.77 845,170 3 20.00
Granted 510,798 12.19 — —
Exercised (119,500} 9.10 — —
Forfeited (210,251) 29.17 — —
Balance, December 31, 2000 S 71,540,283 $ 18.56 860,049 3 22.58
Granted 311,750 13.75 — —
Exercised {13,000} 8.90 — . —
Forfeited (173) 14.38 — —
Balance, December 31, 2001 1,838,860 $ 17.82 1,124,918 $ 20.68
Granted 327,500 8.49 - —_
Exercised (23,833) 8.683 — —
_Forfeited . ... ... lisseey 1891 — S
Balance, December 31, 2002 2,003,862 $ 16.26 1,347,348 $ 18.95

The following table summarizes information for options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2002:

- QPTICHS TUTSTANDINE BPTIONS EXERCISABLE
© pangeor T wmieateo- wrieeTen- o WEIGHTED-
PRICES PIR GHBER AVERAGE REMIAININE AVERASE RUTBER AYERACE
SiARL BUTSTARDIRG CORTRASTUAL LIFE EXERCISE PRICE EXERCISABLE EHERCISE PRICE
$ 600 - 11.99 790,504 7.2 years s 8093 422,667 $ 984
$ 12.00 - 15.99 633,957 7.4 years S 14.40 365,279 $ 14.63
$ 16.00 - 19.99 75,167 6.4 years s 17.94 55,168 $ 17.95
$ 20.00 - 35.99 374,500 3.3 years $ 2491 374,500 $ 2491
$ - 60.99 129,734 2.9 years $ 44.04 129,734 $ 44.04
2,003,862 6.2 years $ 16.26 1,347,348 $ 18.95




On a pro-forma basis, assuming compensation expense
for FPIC's stock options had been recognized based on
their fair values on the grant date under the methodology
prescribed by FAS 123, FPIC's net income, tax expense and
diluted earnings per share for the three years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, would have been
impacted as follows:

2002 200 2000

Pro-forma net {loss) income $(15,755) 1,899 (1,114)
Pro-forma basic {loss)

earnings per share $ {1.68) 0.20 (0.12)
Pro-forma diluted (loss)

earnings per share $ (1.67) 0.20 0.12)

The fair value of options granted, which is amortized to
expense over the option vesting period in determining the
pro-forma impact, is estimated on the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following
weighted average assumptions:

2002 2001 2000

Expected life of options 5 yearé 5 years 5 years
Risk free interest rate 3.31% 4.60% 5.560%
Expected volatility of stock 50.41% 43.64% 42.17%

The weighted average fair value of options granted dur-
ing 2002, 2001 and 2000 are as follows:

20802 2001 2000

Fair value of options granted $ 4.03 6.12 5.50
Total fair value of all

options granted $ 1,319 1,676 2,809
Expected dividends $ — — —
Total number of

options granted 327,500 311,750 510,798

In accordance with FAS 123, the weighted average fair
value of stock options granted is required to be based on
a theoretical statistical model using the preceding Black-
Scholes assumptions. In actuality, because FPIC’s incen-
tive stock options are not traded on any exchange, employ-
ees can receive no value nor derive any benefit from hold-
ing stock options under these plans without an increase in
the market price of FPIC's stock. Such an increase in stock
price would benefit all stockholders commensurately.

NOTE 20
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

FPIC currently sponsors eight post-retirement plans for
its employees. The table below lists those plans and the
subsidiary of FPIC whose employees are covered by that
plan.

Holding company including First Professionals ("FIG")

FIG Defined contribution profit sharing plan

FIG Defined benefit pian

FIG Supplemental executive retirement plan
("SERP")

Tenere Defined contribution profit sharing plan
and trust

Tenere Money purchase pension plan

AFP Defined contribution profit sharing plan

AFP Defined benefit plan

EMI Defined contribution profit sharing plan

The FIG defined contribution profit sharing plan is
available to all employees of FIG after meeting certain eli-
gibility requirements. The plan is comprised of two parts.
The first part of the plan is a defined contribution plan
that allows employees to contribute up to 12.5% of their
annual compensation, subject to IRS limits. FPIC con-
tributes a matching amount equal to 2.5% of the employ-
ee's annual compensation. The second part of the planis a
profit sharing plan, whereby FPIC may at its discretion
make an additional contribution to the plan up to a maxi-
mum of 10% of the employee's annual compensation.
FPIC’s policy is to fully fund the liability for the matching
portion at the end of each year. At December 31, 2002 and
2001, the fair market value of defined contribution profit
sharing plan assets was $5,121 and $4,900, respectively.
The expense for this plan amounted to $990, $1,138 and
$896 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The FIG defined benefit plan is available to all eligible
employees of FIG who have six months of service and
whose ages are twenty and one half years of age or older.
The amount of benefits is based on years of service and
0.75% of the employee's average monthly salary not over
the Social Security base plus 1.4% of the employee’s aver-
age monthly salary over the Social Security base. FPIC's
policy is to contribute the maximum amount towards
funding benefits under the plan subject to IRS limits. At
December 31, 2002 and 2001, the fair market value
of defined benefit plan assets was $1,651 and $1,584,
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respectively. FPIC had a net periodic pension cost of $277,
$217 and $197 for this plan in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The expense for this plan amounted to $183,
$143 and $193 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

FIG also has a SERP that provides certain executives
with income at retirement equal to 60% of pre-retirement
base compensation, less qualified pension plan benefits
paid by FPIC and all predecessor plans and Social
Security benefits. The plan has no vesting prior to age 55.
The total liability included in the financial statements for
this plan amounted to approximately $1,541 and $1,353 as
of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. FPIC had a
net periodic pension cost of $258, $386 and $395 under
this plan in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The Tenere defined contribution profit sharing plan and
trust is available to all employees of Tenere upon meeting
certain eligibility requirements. The plan is comprised of
two parts. The first part is a defined contribution plan
that allows employees to contribute up to 10% of their
annual compensation, subject to IRS limits. The second
part is a profit sharing plan, whereby Tenere may at its
discretion contribute an employer contribution to the
plan. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the fair market
value of plan assets was $773 and $1,122, respectively. The
expense for this plan amounted to $76, $66 and $59 in
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The Tenere money purchase plan is available to all
employees of Tenere upon meeting certain eligibility
requirements. The plan is designed to reward long and
loyal service, whereby Tenere will make contributions to
the plan on behalf of the participants for each year of
service until the employee retires. At retirement, the
employee will be eligible to receive the value of the contri-
butions made to the plan on the employee’s behalf. Tenere
contributes on behalf of each participant an amount equal
to 6.0% of the employee’s annual compensation plus 5.7%

of the employee’s annual compensation in excess of the
Social Security Taxable Wage Base. At December 31, 2002
and 2001, the fair market value of plan assets was $358
and $445, respectively. The expense for this plan amounted
to $94, $94 and $75 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The AFP defined contribution and profit sharing and
defined benefit plans are available to all eligible employ-
ees of AFP. The benefits under these plans are based on
years of service and employee compensation. AFP’s fund-
ing policy is to contribute to the plans an amount suffi-
cient to meet the minimum funding requirements set forth
in the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974,
plus any additional amounts determined to be appropri-
ate from time to time. Contributions are intended to be
sufficient to cover the costs of benefits earned for service
to date and an estimate of those costs for future service.
AFP contributed $1,221, $957 and $650 to the plans in
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The invested assets of
the plans consist of investments in various types and cat-
egories of stocks and bonds. At December 31, 2002 and
2001, the fair market value of plan assets was $6,732 and
$6,185, respectively. Pension costs for the years 2002, 2001
and 2000 amounted to $1,255, $978 and $748, respectively.

The EMI defined contribution profit sharing plan is
available for all employees of EMI upon meeting certain
eligibility requirements. Under the plan, employees can
contribute up to 16% of their annual salary, subject to IRS
limits, of which EMI may, at its discretion, contribute a
matching amount of up to 100% of the employee contribu-
tions. Historically, EMI has contributed a matching
amount equal to approximately 30% of the employee con-
tribution. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the fair market
value of plan assets was $2,167 and $3,281. The expense
for this plan amounted to $94, $147 and $125 for 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively.




The actuarially computed net periodic pension cost for our two defined benefit plans combined at 2002, 2001 and

2000, included the following:

2002 200t 2000
Service cost of benefits earned during the period $ 1,034 906 808
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 729 638 540
Expected return on plan assets (548} (541) {500)
Recognized net actuarial loss 235 — —_
Net amortization and deferral 82 191 96
Net periodic pension cost $ 1,532 1,194 944
2002 2001 2000
Actuarial Present Value of Benefit Obligation
Accumulated benefit obligations $ (8,938) (7,330) (6,563)
Projected benefit obligations for service rendered to date ${13,718) (10,680) {9,456)
Plan assets at fair value 8,383 7,769 7,426
Projected benefit obligations in excess of plan assets (5,335) (2,911) (2,030)
Unrecognized net loss from past experience different from that assumed 4,288 1,952 1,081
Prior service cost not yet recognized in net periodic pension cost 215 259 253
Unrecognized net obligations at inception recognized over 15.29 years 169 208 246
Accrued pension cost $ (663} (492) (450)
The fdllowing tables set forth the status of our two Assumptions used in the accounting for the net period-

defined benefit plans combined for the fiscal years ending  ic pension cost and plan status for our two defined bene-
fit plans combined at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
were as follows (weighted-average of the combined plans

December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

2002 200 based on the fair value of the plan assets at year-end):

Change in Benefit Obligation:

Benefit obligation, January 1 $ 10,680 9,974 2002 2001 2000
Service cost 1,034 906 Discount rates 6.45% 6.55% 6.56%
Interest cost 729 638 Rate of increase in
Actuarial loss (gain) 1,361 (346) compensation levels 5.14% 5.04% 5.04%
Benefits paid (86) (538) Return on assets 6.70% 6.75% 7.07%
Other — 46

Benefit obligation, December 31 $ 13,718 10,680

Change in Plan Assets:

Fair value of plan assets, January 1 $ 7.769 7.426
Actual return on plan assets 662) (270)

Employer contributions 1,363 1,150
Benefits paid (87) {537)

Fair value of plan assets, December 31  § 8,383 7.769
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NOTE 21
SEGIAENT ENFORMATION

In accordance with the provisions of FAS 131, “Disclosures
about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information,” FPIC has determined that it has three
reportable operating segments: insurance, reciprocal
management and TPA. Our insurance segment specializes
in professional liability insurance products and services
for physicians, dentists, other healthcare providers and
attorneys. On October 3, 2002, Interlex entered into an
agreement with an unrelated insurance organization to
sell the renewal rights to all of its legal professional lia-
bility policies. The reciprocal management segment con-
tains our subsidiary AFP, which serves as the exclusive
manager and attorney-in-fact of PRI, an insurance recip-
rocal in New York. We do not own PRI and so its financial
statements are not consolidated or included in ours.
Instead, PRI is similar to a mutual insurer and the risks
and rewards of ownership basically vest with the policy-
holders of PRI. The reciprocal management segment also
provides brokerage, administration and intermediary

services for insurance and reinsurance programs to PRI
and FPIC. Our TPA segment markets and administers self-
insured and fully insured plans for both large and small
employers, including group accident and health, workers’
compensation and general liability and property insur-
ance.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as
those described in the summary of significant accounting
policies found in Note 2. FPIC evaluates a segment's per-
formance based on net income or loss and accounts for
intersegment sales and transfers as if the sales or trans-
fers were to a third party. Holding company operations are
included within the insurance segment due to the size and
prominence of the segment and the substantial attention
devoted to it. Intersegment revenues for transactions
between the segments are based on actual costs incurred
and are similar to services that may have been obtained
from an unrelated third party. All segments are managed
separately because each business requires different tech-
nology and marketing strategies.




Selected financial information by segment follows:

FOR THE YEAR EHDED DECENBER 31, 2002

RECIPROCAL TOTAL THTERSEGIENT
INSURRRNCE IZATAGEIGENT ™A SEGMENTS ELIMINATIONS CONSOLIDATED
Total revenue $ 179,700 31,678 15,302 226,680 (5,815) 220,865
Interest revenue 22,672 141 43 22,856 (285) 22,571
Interest expense 4,827 213 — 5,040 — 5,040
Depreciation and amortization 8,572 885 503 7,960 — 7,960
Cumulative effect of change in accounting, .
net of tax — 24,363 5,215 29,578 — 29,578
Net income (loss) 7,961 (17,759} (4,904) (14,702) — (14,702)
Identifiable assets 983,023 40,032 6,283 1,029,338 (2,907) 1,026,431
Goodwill 10,833 8,037 — 18,870 — 18,870
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
RECIPROCAL T0TAL INTERSERMENT
INSURANGE UIANAGENENT TPA SEGMENTS ELEGINATIONS CONSOLIDATED
Total revenue $ 158,213 29296 15984 203493  (5911) 197,582
Interest revenue 24,165 344 159 24,668 (147) 24,521
Interest expense 4,566 — - 4,566 — 4,566
Depreciation and amortization 10,272 2,829 1,297 14,398 — 14,398
Net (loss) income (847) 4,348 (571) 2,930 e 2,930
Identifiable assets 706,290 61,468 14,788 782,546 (11,724) 770,822
Goodwill 10,833 49,140 7.259 67,232 — 67,232
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
RECIPROCAL TOTAL INTERSEBMENT
INSURANCE MANABEMENT TPA SEGMENTS ELIMINATIONS COUSOLIDATED
Total revenue $ 147,852 25,305 16,723 189,880 {7,791} 182,089
Interest revenue 26,304 254 239 26,797 (142) 26,655
Interest expense 4,291 — — 4,291 — 4,291
Depreciation and amortization 6,123 2,557 1,236 9,918 — 9,916
Net (loss) incormne (2,925) 4,360 (821) 614 — 614
Identifiable assets 594,609 62,864 16,564 674,037 (10,355) 663,682
Goodwill 11,362 51,482 7,910 70,754 —_ 70,754
The following table provides a reconciliation of NOTE 22

reportable segment assets to FPIC's consolidated assets:

2002

2000

Total assets for
reportable segments

Investments in equity
method investees

Intercompany receivables (2,907)

$1,262,407 1,023,855 921,958

(233,069) (241,309) (247,921)
(11,724)

(10,355)

Total consolidated assets $1,026,431

770,822

663,682

STATUTORY ACCOUNTING

First Professionals, APAC, Intermed and Interlex are
required to file statutory-basis financial statements with
state insurance regulatory authorities. The insurance sub-
sidiaries are restricted under the Florida and Missouri
Insurance Codes as to the amount of dividends they may
pay without regulatory consent. In 2003, dividends of
$12,547 may be paid without regulatory consent.
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The restricted net assets for FPIC's insurance
subsidiaries at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, are as
follows:

2002 2501 2000
First Professionals $ 99,772 82,513 82,434
APAC 13,151 13,864 14,331
Intermed 24,743 22,174 20,923
Interiex 5,822 8,156 3,761

The statutory capital and surplus for FPIC's insurance
subsidiaries at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, is
shown in the table below.

2002 2001 2000
First Professionals $110,858 91,682 91,594
APAC 14,612 15,405 15,923
Intermed 24,743 22,174 20,923
Interlex 6,541 5,729 4,354
Combined statutory
surplus 156,754 134,990 132,794
Less: Intercompany
eliminations (31,284} (27,903) (24,295)
Consolidated statutory
surplus $125470 107,087 108,499

For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
the statutory net income or loss for FPIC's insurance sub-
sidiaries was as follows:

2002 2001 2000
First Professionals $ 10,961 (6,623) {6,792)
APAC 569 (1,131) (1,088)
Intermed 1,295 390 608
Interlex 99 (637) (692)
Total statutory income
(loss) $ 12,924 {8,001) (7,964)

In March 1998, the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners (“NAIC") adopted the Codification of
Statutory Accounting Principles (the “Codification”) as the
NAIC supported basis of accounting. Codification affects
all statutory financial statements issued after January 1,
2001. The Codificaticn was approved with a provision
allowing for discretion by each state’s Department of
Insurance (“DOI") in determining appropriate statutory
accounting for insurers. Accordingly, such discretion will
continue to allow prescribed or permitted accounting

practices that may differ from state to state or company to
company. The Codification does not affect FPIC’s consoli-
dated financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with GAAP.

FPIC’s insurance subsidiaries: First Professionals,
APAC, Intermed and Interlex prepare financial statements
for regulatory purposes on a statutory-basis in conformi-
ty with the accounting practices prescribed or permitted
by the states of Florida and Missouri. Effective January 1,
2001, both states required all domiciled insurance compa-
nies to prepare their statutory-basis financial statements
in accordance with the provisions of the Codification sub-
ject to the deviations prescribed or permitted by each
state’s Department of Insurance. Accounting changes
adopted to conform to the provisions of Codification are
reported in the statutory financial statements as a cumu-
lative effect of changes in accounting principles and are
recorded as an adjustment to statutory surplus. As a
result of the Codification, FPIC's statutory surplus, on a
consolidated basis, increased by $7.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2001. The components of this increase
included surplus increases of $5.5 million, $1.2 million,
$0.3 million and $0.1 million for First Professionals, APAC,
Intermed and Interlex, respectively. In addition, on a con-
solidated basis and at the subsidiary level, FPIC's statuto-
ry surplus after adoption continues to be in excess of the
current regulatory and risk-based capital requirements.

NMGTE 23
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Effective June 30, 1998, FPIC entered into a management
services agreement with APA Management, Inc. ("APAM")
and Consulting Group of APA, Inc., (“CGA Consulting”), to
provide FPIC with all necessary insurance management
and administrative services for APAC, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of FPIC. FPIC has an indirect financial interest
in APAM through its 9.9% interest in APAL, which owns
100% of APAM. The agreement terminates on December 31,
2003, subject to renewal as provided in the agreement.
Prior to January 1, 2002, the agreement provided that
APAM would receive an annual fee of 14.5% of direct pre-
miums (net of refunds) consisting of an annual 10.5% serv-
ice fee and 4% claims management fee. Effective January
1, 2002, the agreement was amended to implement a slid-
ing fee scale of 14.5% on the first $8 million of written pre-




miums, 11% on written premiums between $8 million and
$10 million, and 10% on all written premiums in excess of
$10 million. In addition, the CGA Consulting fee is $500
annually. The agreement as it concerns APAM, also pro-
vides that anesthesiclogist business produced by First
Professionals or its respective agents will be transferred
to APAC upon renewal, assuming the insured agrees, and
that APAM will receive an annual 1% service fee on such
business. Management fees incurred by FPIC related to its
agreement with APAM were as follows for the periods pre-
sented:

2002 2001 2000

Management and consulting

fees incurred $ 2,722 2,708 2,104

On July 1, 1998, First Professionals and APAC also
entered into a quota share reinsurance agreement with
APAL whereby these two subsidiaries cede a 25% quota
share portion of all business written by them related to
anesthesiologists and certain related specialties to APAL.
These agreements were entered into in connection with
and at the time of FPIC's acquisition of APAC. Premiums
ceded and ceding commission earned by FPIC related to
its agreement with APAL were as follows for the periods
presented:

2002 2001 2000
$ 8,387 4,623 3,354
1,632 859 670

Ceded premiums written
Ceding commission earned

Effective in 2001, APAL formed a new subsidiary, APAL
(SPC) Limited, which was established in accordance with
Section 235(1) of the Company Law 2nd Revision of
Caymanian Law as a segregated portfolio corporation.
FPIC, through its subsidiaries, EMI and APAC, has devel-
oped alternative risk insurance programs for insureds,
whereby segregated portfolio corporations have been
formed for each to assume workers' compensation risks.
APAC receives a fee for the use of its policy forms and does
not retain the underwriting risks or incur the administra-
tive expenses under these programs. Like other reinsur-
ance agreements, APAC does remain liable to the insureds
under these programs as the primary insurer in the event
APAL (SPC) Limited or other reinsurers under these pro-
grams were not to perform. Therefore, APAC maintains
collateral in the form of assets in trust and an irrevocable

letter of credit corresponding with applicable reinsurance
recoverable balances. Premiums written and premiums
ceded by FPIC related to its agreement with APAL (SPC)
Limited were as follows for the periods presented:

2002 2001 2000
$ 32,669 13,220 —
20,972 11,725 —

Premiums written
Ceded premiums written

On July 1, 1998, First Professionals began assuming
reinsurance from PRI, a writer of medical liability insur-
ance in the state of New York. PRI is managed by an attor-
ney-in-fact, AFP, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
FPIC. Under one contract, which reinsures PRI for policies
with limits of $1.0 million in excess of $1.0 million, First
Professionals assumes losses only and pays PRI a ceding
commission on the premiums assumed. Effective April 1,
2002, the contract was changed to reinsure PRI for poli-
cies with limits of $1.0 million in excess of $1.3 million.
Under another contract, which First Professionals and PRI
ceased to renew for periods subsequent to December 31,
2000, First Professionals reinsured PRI for losses of $0.25
million in excess of $0.5 million on each claim. Premiums
on these contracts are paid by PRI on a quarterly basis.
The net premiums written under these agreements are
subject to experience adjustments, which are estimated
and accrued periodically based on loss experience.

Assumed premiums written, net premiums written, pre-
miums earned, losses incurred and ceding commissions
earned by FPIC related to these agreements with PRI were
as follows for the periods presented:

2002 2001 2000
Assumed premiums T
written $12,316 11,354 16,300
Premiums earned 12,316 16,933 16,736
Losses incurred 3,500 8,097 12,608
Ceding commissions 3,097 3,287 3,676

As of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, the net
amounts due from PRI under these contracts were
approximately $6.3 million, $2.4 million and $1.1 million,
respectively.

The excess of loss reinsurance treaty between First
Professionals and PRI related to losses of $0.25 million in
excess of $0.5 million and the reinsurance treaty in which
First Professionals reinsures PRI for policies with limits
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of $1.0 million in excess of $1.3 million both contain
clauses under which PRI has the option to commute each
such agreement. During the fourth quarter of 2001, the
1999 treaty relating to losses of $0.25 million in excess of
$0.5 million was commuted. During the first quarter of
2002, the 2000 treaty relating to losses of $0.25 million in
excess of $0.5 million was commuted. The commutations
eliminated all of First Professionals' present and future
liabilities under the treaty in exchange for the return by
First Professionals of all but the minimum contract premi-
um to PRI. As a result of these commutations, First
Professionals reported approximately $9.0 million and
$9.3 million during the fourth quarter of 2001 and first
quarter of 2002, respectively, of paid losses and LAE with
a corresponding reduction in reserves. There was no net
income effect from these commutations, due to the prior
accrual of such charges.

Effective January 1, 2000, First Professionals entered
into a 100% quota share reinsurance agreement with PRI
to assume PRI's death, disability and retirement risks
under its claims-made insurance policies in exchange for
cash and investments in the amount of $47.0 million.
During 2000, a GAAP valuation of the underlying liability
was completed and & deferred credit in the amount of
$13.2 million was recognized. The deferred credit, which
will be amortized into income over 20 years, represents
the difference between the GAAP valuation of the liability
and the initial premium received. The liability was calcu-
lated using benefit assumptions and elements of pension
actuarial models (i.e., mortality, morbidity, retirement,
interest and inflation rate assumptions). In connection
with the agreement, First Professionals recognized a 5%
ceding commission expense, which is being deferred and
amortized as premiums are earned under the agreement.

In accordance with a management agreement, AFP per-
forms underwriting, administrative and investment func-
tions on PRI's behalf for which it receives compensation.
Compensation under the agreement as originally in effect
was equal to 13% of PRI's direct premiums written, with

an adjustment for expected return premiums, plus or
minus 10% of PRI's statutory net income or loss. In addi-
tion, the management agreement provided that AFP is to
be reimbursed by PRI for certain expenses paid by AFP on
PRI’s behalf, namely salaries and related payroll costs of
personnel in AFP’s claims, legal and risk management
departments. Such directly reimbursed expenses are not
reported in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

During 2002, the agreement was amended by AFP and
PRI to remove the sharing by AFP of 10% of PRI's statuto-
ry net income or loss, effective January 1, 2002. With
regard to profit sharing amounts already earned and col-
lected, AFP has agreed to hold the years 1999, 2000 and
2001 open for re-determination and possible adjustment
for a period of five years each (expiring 2004, 2005 and
2006, respectively.) Such adjustments would be based pri-
marily on development of and related adjustments, if any,
to loss and LAE reserves for those years. AFP has earned
and collected profit sharing amounts under the original
agreement totaling $3.6 million for the three years ended
December 31, 2001. In accordance with the amended
agreement, AFP has agreed to pay 6% annual interest on
the 10% profit share amounts already earned and collect-
ed under the original agreement for 1999, 2000 and 2001,
while those years remain open for possible future re-
determination and adjustment, if any. In addition, AFP
will be reimbursed for 100% of the costs of the risk man-
agement department it maintains for PRI insureds, for
which it is not already reimbursed, compared with 50%
under the previous agreement. The management agree-
ment and amendments were reviewed and approved by
the New York State Insurance Department.

FPIC's revenues and results of operations are financial-
ly sensitive to the revenues and results of operations of
PRI. In addition PRI, as an MPL insurer, is subject to many
of the same types of risks as those of FPIC's insurance
subsidiaries.




Claims administration and management fees earned,
profit sharing income earned and reimbursed expenses
collected by FPIC related to its agreement with PRI were
as follows for the periods presented:

2002 2001 2000

Claims administration and

management fees earned $ 24,341 22,959 17,044
Profit sharing income earned — 317 1,590
Reimbursed expenses 14,175 11,530 10,594

Effective July 1, 2000, First Professionals entered into
an agreement with PRI whereby, First Professionals,
through FPIC's 70% owned subsidiary, PMA, manages an
MPL insurance program in Pennsylvania for PRI. Effective
January 1, 2003, FPIC owns 80% of PMA. Under this pro-
gram, whereby business is written on First Professionals’
policy forms and ceded to PRI under a 100% quota share
reinsurance agreement. FPIC receives a fronting fee of 7%
and PMA receives an administration fee of 20% of premi-
ums written, in return for its services to PRI, which
include underwriting, claims management and other

~administrative aspects of this program. PMA also pays all
commissions and brokerage to outside agents and brokers
for the placement of business under the program.
Effective January 1, 2002, the terms of this agreement
were amended to cede 100% of the premiums written to
PRI. The amendment has been filed with the New York
State Insurance Department. Direct premiums written,
ceded premiums written and ceding commission earned
by FPIC under this program were as follows for the peri-
ods presented:

2002 2001 2000

Direct premiums written $ ll,éi é 12,121 570
Ceded premiums written 11,227 10,848 511
Ceding commission earned 3,045 2,133 128

NOTE 24
RESTRUCTURING

During the fourth quarter of 2001, FPIC recorded a pre-tax
charge of $632 in connection with the disposition of its
unprofitable TPA division in Albuquerque, New Mexico.
Under the plan, FPIC sold the division's assets and can-
celled its service agreements with self-insured customers.
Certain other contracts were retained and are serviced by
FPIC’s Jacksonville, Florida, TPA division. The 2001
restructuring activity was a continuation of FPIC's consol-
idation of the TPA operations and brings to an end the
restructuring activities of the Albuquerque division that
began during the fourth quarter of 2000 when FPIC
incurred a pre-tax charge of $500. As a result of the plan,
fifty-two employees were terminated at December 31,
2001. This reduction represents 24% of the TPA workforce
and 100% of the New Mexico office. Thirty employees were
terminated at December 31, 2000. This reduction repre-
sented 12% of the TPA workforce and 35% of the New
Mexico office. All employees terminated in 2001 and 2000
were located in the Albuquerque location. Restructuring
activity for years 2002, 2001 and 2000 was as follows:

SEVERANCE RENTAL OTHER
& BEUEFITS FACILITIES EXPENSE TRTAL

»fiscal 2000

restructuring charge $ 360 90 50 500
Amount utilized

in 2000 (10) (27) 33} (70)
Balance,

December 31, 2000 350 63 17 430
Fiscal 2001

restructuring charge 88 446 98 632
Amount utilized

in2001 350 B3 B0 (443)
Balance,

December 31, 2001 88 446 85 619
Amount utilized

in 2002 87) (212) (55) (354)
Balance,

December 31, 2002 $ 1 234 30 265

I%
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NOTE 25
UNAUDITED QUARTERLY RESULTS OF QPERATIGNS

The following is a summary of our unaudited quarterly consolidated results of operations for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000:

2002 FIRST SECOAD THIRD FOURTH
"Direct end assumed premiums written $ 89,258 90,426 90,856 74,187
Net premiums written 56,196 57,164 (6,448) 33,336
Premiums earned 39,342 47,560 30,435 34,347
Net investment income 4,888 5,813 5,241 3,960
Total revenues 53,416 62,775 49,960 54,714
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change 2,865 2,609 4,415 4,987
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of deferred income tax benefit (29,578) — — i
Net (loss) income (26,713) 2,609 4,415 4,987
Basic (loss) earnings per share (2.85) 0.28 0.47 0.53
Diluted (loss) earnings per share (2.82) 0.26 0.47 0.53
2021 Fiast SECOND THAD FCURTH
Direct and assumed premiums written $ 55,173 46,943 73,004 70,283
Net premiums written 35,898 29,318 43,194 38,674
Premiums earned 31,517 34,802 29,686 35,053
Net investment income 6,716 5,940 5,817 4,904
Total revenues 46,287 49,461 48,275 53,559
Net income (loss) 1,294 1,862 3,099 (3,325)
Basic earnings (loss) per share 14 .20 .33 (.36)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share 14 .20 .33 (.36)
2000 FIRST sEcone THIRD FOURTE
"Direct and assumed premiums written T $76,083" 35,046 54,610 31,5917
Net premiums written 66,247 29,919 39,987 25,778
Premijums earned 29,119 33,434 29,867 28,034
Net investment income 6,039 6,174 6,490 6,116
Total revenues 44,177 47,772 46,383 43,757
Net income (loss) 4,712 5,143 4,926 (14,167)
Basic earnings (loss) per share 49 .54 .52 (1.49)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share 49 54 52 (1.49)

{1) Includes the effect of the reclassification of a portion of the statutory-basis assumed reinsurance premiums written in the amount of $13.2 million relat-
ed to the 100% Quota Share reinsurance agreement with PRI This amount was finalized, reclassified and reported directly as a deferred credit in the bal-
ance sheet during the second quarter of 2000, after the initial reporting of the contract in the first quarter. This reclassification had no effect on revenues
or income previously reported.
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e-mail at ir@fpic.com or by calling Investor Relations at
904-354-2482 Ext. 3287 or by writing to:

Investor Relations

FPIC Insurance Group, Inc.
225 Water Street, Suite 1400
Jacksonville, FL 32202
904-354-2482 Ext. 3287

Our Web site also provides access to our interactive
e-mail notification service simply by adding your e-mail
address to the “e-mail alert” section of our Web site. You
will automatically be alerted to any new press releases,
earnings reports and SEC filings via e-mail.

STOCK DATA

The Company's common stock is publicly traded on
the Nasdaq National Market System under the symbol
FPIC. The following table sets forth, for the periods indi-
cated, the high and low bid quotations as reported. Such
quotations reflect inter-dealer bids and offers, without
retail markup, markdown or commission and may not nec-
essarily represent actual transactions.

2602 HiGH 81D 10V BID
First Quarter $15.90 $10.70
Second Quarter $16.00 $11.90
Third Quarter $15.07 $ 7.65
Fourth Quarter $ 8.97 $ 3.50
00 HiGH 3ID L0%W BID
First Quarter $13.88 $ 9.00
Second Quarter $13.75 % 9.00
Third Quarter $15.09  $10.00
Fourth Quarter $15.40 $11.24

As of March 20, 2003, the Company estimated that there
were approximately 2,330 shareholders of record of the
Company's common stock.

The Company did not pay cash dividends on its
common stock during 2002 or 2001. The Company does not
anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable
future. In addition, the Company's credit facility and term
loan agreement places restrictions on the amount of divi-
dends we can pay our shareholders without the consent of
our lenders. For information regarding restrictions on the
ability of the Company's subsidiaries to transfer funds to
the Company in the form of cash dividends, see Footnote
22, Statutory Accounting, in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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